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any woman do they not work being married, they're going

to tell you they do.

Q.

Other than her responsibilities as a wife and a

mother, does your wife work?

A.
Q.
A.
Q.
months
Diego,
A.
maybe.

Q.

0 ? Le] ? © ?‘ Lo .

>

No.

Where does your wife live?

Same two addresses when she's in those towns.
And if you had to estimate over the last 12
how much time she spent between Las Vegas and San
what would it be?

Probably more time here than San Diego. 60/40,
Again, I don't -- I don't keep track.

How many children do you have?

Two.

How old are they?

My son is 29, and my daughter is 26.

Where does your son live?

San Diego.

Full-time?

80 percent of the time.

Where else does he live?

Well, he comes back here. He has friends here.

We have an office here. So he comes back and forth, but

a majority of the time in San Diego.

Q.

Where does he stay when he's in Las Vegas?
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Red Arrow.

What's the address of his residence in San Diego?
877 Island Avenue, Number 701.

Is that the condo that he purchased with the

money from your wife based upon the property separation

agreement?

A,

That's the money that my wife loaned to him to

purchase the condo; correct.

Q.

loan?

Q.

to get
Q.
Al

Q.

Is your son making payments to your wife for that

I don't know.

Is there a loan agreement --

That's a mother and son deal that I'm not allowed
into the middle of.

You're not allowed to get in the middle of it?
Correct.

Is there a written agreement documenting that

loan between your wife and your son?

A.

Q.

I have no idea.

Do you know the terms of the agreement between

your wife and your son?

A.
Q.
A.
Q

I have no idea.
Does the agreement call for periodic payments?
I have no idea.

Does it call for interest rate?
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. I have no idea. It is her son.

A
Q. Is your son employed?
A. Yes.
Q. With who?
A Director of operations for CannaVest.
Q. What does he do as the director of operations for
CannaVest?

A. Runs operations.

Q. In San Diego?

A. Correct.

Q. And what operations does he run?

A. He's in charge of a lab, in charge of the
warehouse.

Q. What is his background?

A. Was born in Las Vegas, went to school all

through -- went to day school at Gorman, then went to
the University of San Diego, graduated -- I don't
know -- eight years ago, I believe, seven years ago,

something like that, and came home for six months and
back to San Diego.

Q. Does he have an educational background in lab
work?

A. Business.

Q. He has no scientific background?

A. No. When I say run the lab, he doesn't put the
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1 garment on and go do the scientific stuff. He runs the
2 employees and makes sure it goes through. I don't allow
3 him to get where he has the ability to get behind the

4 machines and do the work.

5 Q. How many employees does CannaVest have in San

6 Diego?

7 A, 35.

8 Q. How many employees does CannaVest have here in

9 Las Vegas?

10 A. One.

11 Q. Who's that?

12 A. Kathleen Keller.

13 Q. What does Kathleen Keller do?

14 A. She is in charge of all the payroll. She runs
15 payroll, new hires, and answers the phone for the Las
16 Vegas address and runs operations here.

17 Q. Does she work exclusively for CannaVest?

18 A She does some Mona Co stuff also.

19 Q. So she runs Mona Co and CannaVest?

20 A She doesn't run Mona Co. They share an office.
21 Q. Does CannaVest have any operations currently?
22 A. As far as -- explain operations.
23 Q. I'm sorry.
24 Does Mona Co have any operations currently?

25 A, No.
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Did Mona Co have any operations in 20147

No.

Tell me about your daughter. She's 26. Where

does she live?

A.

o P 0 2 0 P 0 ? o] ? 0 ? ©

>

trusts.

Lo R S © B

She lives in San Diego.

Where at?

Across the street.

From the condo?

Across the street from us in San Diego.
Okay. What's the address there?

I have no idea.

Does she rent or own that condo?

She rents.

Do you know who the owner of that condo is?

She got it through some real estate company.

The owner of the condo is unrelated to you?
Correct.
Is she making payments for the rent?

I believe my son pays her rent through the

Your son pays your daughter's rent?
Through their trust.

And what's the name of the trust?
Mik Nik Trust.

How is that trust funded?
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My wife and I started it in 1998, I believe.

And how was the trust funded?
It has not been funded in years.

. When was the last time the trust was funded?

> o » 0

Well, they got some MJINA stock a few years ago,
and they got some Hemp stock a couple years ago. My son
worked for MINA for me, and they got paid through some
stock there. And then he was a consultant for a company
called Hemp, H-E-M-P, which the stock receives -- the
trust receives some stock for.

Q. And why would the trust -- or why would that
stock for your son's compensation go to the trust as
opposed to your son personally?

A. Him and my daughter are very, very close. He
takes care of her, period.

Q. In what ways?

A. Well, he helps her financially. He's a very good
big brother.

Q. Do you help your daughter financially?

A. Well, I give her money here and there, 200 here,
300 here. Large sums of money? Not at all.

Q. Does your wife help your daughter financially?

A. Well, I'm sure she does. It's her daughter. So
the degree, I have no idea.

Q. You're not aware of any monthly checks, for

Litigation Services | 800-330-1112 0557

www.litigationservices.com

2958

634



MICHAEL J. MONA, JR. - 06/30/2015

Page 61

1 example, that your wife writes to your daughter?

2 A. No.

3 Q. Do you know the address of the unit that your

4 daughter lives in?

5 A. You asked that and I told you no. Same answer.
6 Q. TIt's amazing you have a wonderful memory here in
7 this judgment debtor examination. I hope that extends
8 throughout the rest of our testimony.

9 A. If I remember, I will tell vyou.

10 Q. I appreciate that.

11 A. If T don't, I won't tell you.

12 Q. Excellent.

13 MR. COFFING: It's been an hour. Do you
14 mind if we take a five-minute break?

15 MR. EDWARDS: Sure.

16 (A break was taken from 10:39 a.m. through
17 10:45 a.m.)

18 BY MR. EDWARDS:

19 Q. 8Sir, how would we determine the balance owed to
20 Mr. Sifen?
21 A. T'm sorry.
22 Q. How would we determine the balance owed to Mr.
23 Siefen?
24 A. Mr. Sifen?
25 Q. Sifen.
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A. T don't know.

Q. How would you determine the balance you owe to
Mr. Siefen?
A million-two, million-four, maybe.
I'm asking how would you determine that?

How would I determine that?

Lo o B 4

Correct.

A. Probably on the notes or, you know, I borrowed
money from him, and I know I lost money. I owe him for
that. S8So I would have to say based upon past
experience.

Q. You gave him a property in partial satisfaction
of the debt; correct?

A. Correct.

Q. How much did it satisfy?

A. Well, I thought it would satisfy it all, but the
property's worth zero right now.

Q. At the time you transferred the property to Mr.
Siefen, you believed it would satisfy the debt in full?
A. No. I was hoping it would satisfy part of it.

What part of it?
Whatever part he decided.
You left that up to him?

Yes.

(o R S o B .

. As it relates to Roen paying your mortgage, do
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you address those payments anywhere on your taxes?

A. I don't know if my accountant does or not. I'm
sure he does. I can't answer that question.

Q. Does Roen report those payments to your mortgage
as income to you?

A. I don't know how he handles it.

Q. You mentioned that Kathleen works for both
CannaVest and Mona Co; correct?

A. Correct.

Q. How is she paid?

A. Through CannaVest.

Q. Exclusively?

A. 98 percent CannaVest. Mona Co just -- I don't
think the phone has rang as Mona Co for five years.

Q. BSo CannaVest pays 100 percent of her salary?

A. Correct.

Q. And for the last five years of that, you'd say
that Mona Co has had no business?

A. 2010. Four years for sure.

Q. Okay.

MR. COFFING: It's defending a lawsuit if
that helps, if that's doing business. The construction
defect thing.

THE WITNESS: Oh, I forgot about that.

MR. COFFING: So...
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BY MR. EDWARDS:

Q. What do you do for work, sir?

A. President and CEO currently of CannaVest.

Q. How long have you been the president and CEO of
CannaVest?

A. Two years.

Q. Before your work as president and CEO of
CannaVest, what did you do for a living?

A. I was a consultant for MINA for a year and a
half, maybe.

Q. Before your time as a consultant for MJNA, what
did you do for a living?

A. Been a developer in this town for 30 years.

Q. What did you develop?

A. Emerald Suites, St. Louis -- different --
different daily/weekly projects, a couple spec homes
here and there, which my wife decorated, but that's it.

Q. Was your wife paid for the work to decorate the
homes that you built?

A. If she was, it was very minor. She was my wife.

Q. So your wife did not have an agreement with the
owner; she was working with you?

A. The only agreement she had was with Mr. Shustick.
He paid her for that. That's it. Other than that, it

was through me, yes.
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. What is the address for CannaVest?

2688 South Rainbow.

. Is there a suite number?

B as in boy. Las Vegas, Nevada 89146.
What's the address for Mona Co?

Correct. Same address.

0 ? 0 ?‘ 10 ? 10

And what's a telephone number for CannaVest?

A. I'd have to look at my card here. It's on speed
dial for me. I have no idea. 866-290-2157.

Q. So when you're in the CannaVest office, it's just
you and Kathleen; correct?
A. In Las Vegas?
Q. Correct.
A. Yes.

Q. Where are the other officers of CannaVest
stationed?

A. San Diego.

Q. Exclusively?

A. No. We come here for board meetings and
different meetings.

Q. Who are the other officers of CannaVest?

A. Joseph Dowling is my CFO. You know my son,
director of operations. Stuart Tomc, T-0-M-C, is the
director of human nutrition.

Q. T-0-M-C?
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A. T-0O-M-C.
Q. So Mr. Dowling and Mr. Tomc live in San Diego?
A. Correct.
Q. And they're only in Las Vegas for occasional
meetings?
A. Joseph is, yes. Stuart I don't think has ever

been to Las Vegas.

Q.

A
Q
A

they do minor cash deposits for, where people buy cash

for products that are running that bank.

Q.

Bank of Nevada for CannaVest?

A.

10 ? 10 ? Lo} ? © ? 0

.

Where does CannaVest bank?
First Security Bank of Nevada.
Is that the only bank that CannaVest banks at?

You know, there's another bank in California that

Who are the signatories on the First Security

Myself, Joseph Dowling, and my son.

You all have individual signatory authority?
Correct.

What is your yearly salary at CannaVest?
300,000 a year.

How often do you get paid?

Every two weeks.

Does your salary fluctuate in any way?

I'm sorry?

Does your salary fluctuate in any way?
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A. No.

Q. Do you receive any bonuses?

A. I believe I received a $10,000 bonus last vyear
for Christmas.

Q. Who determines your salary?

A. The board of directors.

Q. Who's on the board of directors?

A. Bart Mackay, Larry Raskin and myself. I
obviously have no vote in that; it's Mr. Raskin and Mr.
Bart Mackay.

Q. Who determines whether you receive bonuses?

A. The compensation group which consists of Larry
Raskin and Bart Mackay.

Q. Are you expecting a Christmas bonus this year?

A. I'm lucky if I have a job this year the way the
stock has hit the bottom. So do I hope to receive a
bonus? Yes. Do I hope to have a job? Yes. I don't
know. And if you follow our stock, you would see why.

(Exhibit 9 was marked for identification.)
BY MR. EDWARDS:

Q. 8Sir, I'm showing you what's been marked Exhibit

Do you recognize this document?
A. Yes.

Q. What is it?
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It's an employment agreement.

Between you and CannaVest?

Correct.

o or 0

. Has this agreement been employed by the board or
the compensation committee at CannaVest?

A. At this time, no. It was simply me. The
board -- compensation board was not assembled at that
time.

Q. So you unilaterally approved this employment
agreement at the time?

A. Correct.

Q. Has it subsequently been approved by the beoard or
the compensation committee?

A. Yes.

Q. When did that happen?
A. I'm guessing within the last year.

Q. Did they approve it as written, or did they
modify it?

A. I don't know if this was a new employment
contract or not. I know I got a raise for 300,000 last
year. But like T said, T don't recall if there's
another employment agreement. I don't believe so.

Q. Down at the bottom of the first page of Exhibit
9, there's a paragraph here under stock options.

Do you see that?
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A. Correct.

Q. 2And this employment agreement awards you 500,000
shares of common stock or an option for 500,000 shares
of stock?

A. Correct.

Q. Did you ever exercise that option?

A. No. It was -- Mr. Mackay and Mr. Raskin revoked
this. I never got this.

Q. Why did they revoke this?

A. I don't know. To answer your question, I never
received this option, no.

Q. Well, you were giving yourself this option in the
first place; correct?

A. Correct.

Q. At what point in time did they take this option
away from you?

A. Last year or so, a year and a half.

Q. Any discussion with you of why they took the
stock option away from you?

A. No.

Q. You have no understanding whatsoever of why they
took the stock option away from you?

A. No.

Q. So if I understand right, you never exercised any

portion of this stock option?
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A. Correct.

Q. On the next page, page 2, it says the term of

this employment agreement is 60 months.
Do you see that?

A. Correct.

Q. Is the term of your current employment agreement
with CannaVest still 60 months?

A. Again, I don't remember if I have a current one
or not. This one states 60 months. I believe this is
the only one. So I'd have to say that this is a
60-month term.

Q. Are there any other provisions of this employment
agreement that the compensation committee or board of
directors has disapproved of or taken away from you?

A. I still have insurance, still have vacation.
Stock options is about it.

Q. To the best of your recollection, the only
element of this employment agreement that has been taken
away from you so to speak is the stock option provision?

A. Correct.

Q. To the best of your knowledge, the rest of this
employment agreement remains in full force and effect?

A. Correct.

MR. COFFING: Except for the salary.

THE WITNESS: Except for the salary. I
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already mentioned that.

BY MR. EDWARDS:

Q. Have you had any discussions with the board about
extending your employment agreement?

A, No. Not at this time.

Q None whatsoever?

A. None whatsoever.

Q Have you had any discussions with the individual
members of the board about extending your employment
agreement?

A. Timing is not good for that. The answer is no.

Q. Do you view the board as taking away your 500,000
share stock option as a positive or a negative?

A. Well, obviously a negative.

Q. Was that because the board was not happy with
your performance?

A. I do not know what they were thinking.

Q. You've never had any discussion with them about
what they were thinking?

A. No.

(Exhibit 10 was marked for identification.)
BY MR. EDWARDS:

Q. Sir, I'm showing you what's been marked as

Exhibit 10.

Do you recognize this document?
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A. Yes.
Q. What is it?
A. It's a CannaVest Corporation stock option grant

notice.

Q. To the best of your knowledge, is this still a
valid and binding agreement?

A. Yes.

Q. 1Is this what replaced your $500,000 stock option
agreement?

A. Well, I believe they kind of justified taking
that low option number away by giving me these, but you
can see the price is a lot higher on this than it was,
68 cents. So I was not a fan.

Q. You were not a fan of Exhibit 10, the stock
option agreement?

A. Well, I appreciated the options, but I did not
like the option being taken away, the 68 cents go to
$2.64.

Q. So it's your understanding that under the
employment agreement marked as Exhibit 9, your exercise
price was 68 cents?

A. Correct.

Q. And under Exhibit 10 that has been increased to
$2.647

A. Correct.
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Q. When was the last time CannaVest stock traded

above $2.647

A. Three months ago, four months ago maybe.

Q. Have you ever exercised any options under this
stock option agreement?

A. ©No, sir.

Q. Do you own any stock of CannaVest?

A. No, sir.

Q. When I say you, I'm going to use that broad you:
you, your wife, your trust, any entity in which you hold
interest.

Do you own any interest in CannaVest?

A. Again, my wife invested a million dollars into
Roen. Roen owes her stock. So do I have any? No. Her
million dollar investment she has stock for that.

Q. She has -- walk me through that. I'm not sure
I'm understanding.

A. Well, she invested a million in Roen, and it's
convertible any time she wants to convert it.

Q. And so the million dollars that your wife loaned
to Roen is convertible into CannaVest stock?

A. Correct.

Q. How much?

A. A dollar a share.

0.

So a million shares?
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Correct.

Has she exercised that option yet?

» ©

No.

Q. Do you know if she intends to exercise that
option?

A. No idea.

Q. And I apologize if I'm treading old ground, but
the million dollars that she loaned to Roen came from
the agreement we looked at earlier in the examination,
the post-marital settlement agreement?

A. Came from her portion of the post-marital
agreement; correct.

Q. Has the board taken away any provision as it
relates to the stock options identified in Exhibit 10°?

A. As of today, no.

Q. Do you expect them to do so?

A. I have no idea. It's a multimillion dollar
question.

{Exhibit 11 was marked for identification.)
BY MR. EDWARDS:

Q. Sir, I'm showing you what's been marked as
Exhibit 11.

Do you recognize this document?

A. Yes.

Q. What is it?
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1 A. It's a CannaVest Corporation 10-K annual report.
2 Q. Did you participate in the preparation of this

3 report?

4 A. Very little. My CFO and the accountant handle

5 this.

6 Q. Did you ultimately approve it before this report
7 went final?

8 A. Pardon me?

9 Q. Did you ultimately approve this report before it
10 went final?

11 A. Well, obviously I signed it, so obviously yes.
12 Q. I'm going to direct your attention to page 19 of
13 Exhibit 11.
14 A. I'm sorry. 19°?
15 Q. Yes.
16 Do you see under the section executive
17 compensation, your name?
18 A. Yes.
19 Q. 8o last year you earned a little over $200,000;
20 is that correct?
21 A. Correct.
22 Q. That's with a $10,000 bonus we talked about?
23 A. Correct.
24 Q. It says optional work for $8.3 million?
25 A. Correct.
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Q. What's that?

A. I had the same question to my CFO and PKF, our
public accountants, and apparently they have to put a
value on the stock options when they're awarded. That's
the value they put on it.

Q. And how did they put that value on the stock
options when they were awarded?

A. I believe that was the price of the stock when it
was awarded. 2Again, I'm not an accountant, but I
believe that was it. That's the number they had to put
in the stock of the option awards.

Q. Did they take into account the stock price as of
the date of the option agreement?

A. I don't know.

Q. Do you have any idea how they calculated the
value of the stock options?

A. No.

Q. Who can we speak to, to figure out how they
calculated the value of the stock options?

A. Joseph Dowling my CFO.

Q. A little bit further down on Exhibit 19, do you
see the subheading compensation arrangements?

A. Correct.

Q. Second sentence says during fiscal year 2014, Mr.

Mona was paid an aggregate sum of $5,939,950.
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A. Correct.
Q. Do you see that?
A_. Uh-huh.
Q. Were you paid that much money in 20147
A. Not at all.
Q. Where did that number come from?
A. Again, that was -- that is four-year option.

From my understanding, from Joe, is that was the wvalue
of the options through this period.

Q. And you still don't know how they came to compute
that value?

A. Well, they put an option, a price on the options.
That's what was awarded so far the three years. It's a
four-year option plan, and I guess I'm on the fourth
yvear. So through 2014 this is what they valued the
options were worth. Did I receive $5,939,000? No. Did
I receive $209,521? Yes.

Q. Plus $10,000 bonus?

A. Correct.

Q. In the paragraph below, the board of directors
also approved a nice salary for your son; correct?

A. TIt's a fair salary.

Q. Why do you believe it's a fair salary?

A. Well, of course he's my son, number one. Number

two, I know how hard he works, and I know what being a
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part of a company is. I think he's underpaid and so

does he. But, you know, you ask anybody in America,
they're probably underpaid.

Q. Prior to August 25, 2014, what was your son's
salary at CannaVest?

A. You know, I don't believe we got paid then. I
don't believe there was a salary. Again, I'm guessing
here, but I believe that's when we started salaries.
I'm not sure. So I guess I shouldn't answer that
question.

Q. Let me direct your attention up to the executive
compensation section again and the line item relating to
your son. It says in 2013, he was paid $44,769.

A. There you go.

Q. 1Is that consistent --

A. I probably should have loocked at that pricr to
answering the question.

Q. Is that consistent with what your understanding
of what your son made from CannaVest in 2013?

A. Obviously vyes.

Q. And do you think he made something similar with
that up to August 25, 20147?

A. TI'm sorry?

Q. Do you think he made something similar to that up

to August 25, 2014, when the board of directors approved
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another salary for him?

A. I have no reason to doubt Joe's work.

Q. ©So that's a yes?

A. Yes.

Q. Next sentence under compensation arrangements
says that during fiscal year 2014, Mr. Mona, III, was
paid an aggregate sum of 1.428 million.

Do you see that?

A. Correct.

Q. Was your son paid 1.428 million in 20142

A. Again, I don't know through the accounting
principles exactly what he was paid. I don't know if
some of that was valued the same way mine was or not. I
don't know that answer.

Q. Your son also has stock options as it relates to
CannaVest; correct?

A. Correct.

Q. Has he ever exercised any of those stock options?

A. I believe he exercised a small portion of them
earlier this year.

Q. What was his exercise price?

A. I don't recall.

Q. So you still own zero stock as it relates to
CannaVest?

A. Correct.
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Q. Your son owns a certain amount of stock for
CannaVest?
A. I believe -- again, I'm guessing here and I

shouldn't do this, but I believe it's a million shares
he has options on.

Q. And in addition to the shares he has options on,
he's also executed some of those options; correct?

A. I believe what he's executed was a portion of
those million shares.

Q. Do you know how many shares your son actually
owns now?

A. What do you mean owns? Options.

Q. Apart from the options, the actual shares he

A. No, I don't.

Q. Do you know an approximate amount?

A No, I don't.

Q. TIs it 3 million?

A I don't know.

Q. It could be 3 million?

A. No. 1It's not that high. T believe it's a
million.

Q. You believe it's a million that he actually owns?

A. Again, he has options on a million. You're

trying to get me to say an answer 1 don't know an answer
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to. I'm not going to guess. I believe it's a million
shares. Out of that million shares he may have pulled
some of the options. I don't know. That's his affair,
not mine.

Q. And other than those shares that you just
discussed, are you aware of your son holding any other
shares in CannaVest?

A. No.

Q. Turn your attention to the next page, page 20 of
Exhibit 11. You see item number 12, discussing
ownership?

A. Correct.

Q. And under this chart it shows that your son owns
1.8 million shares in CannaVest.

Do you see that?

A. I see that.

Q. It says you own 3.3 million shares of CannaVest.
Do you see that?

A. Correct.

Q. Do you own 3.3 million shares in CannaVest?

A. Let me try to explain this one more time. Okay?
I have -- well, no. It's getting old.

MR. COFFING: The document speaks for

itself.

THE WITNESS: There's 4 million options that
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1 I have the right to at that price. Up until now I have
2 earned 3,304,659 options to which I have not exercised

3 any. That's about as much as I can explain. Do I own

4 any right now? No. Have I owned any? No. I own 4

5 million options.

6 BY MR. EDWARDS:

7 Q. You see the number for your son. Can you tell

8 the difference between the shares your son owns and the
9 shares your son has options to?

10 MR. COFFING: The document speaks for

11 itself. It's subject to gualifying the ownership rules
12 by the SEC as subject to options. So the document

13 speaks for itself. You can answer.

14 THE WITNESS: What was the question?
15 BY MR. EDWARDS:
16 Q. If you can tell by locking at the 10-K for your
17 company, how many shares your son owns as opposed to how
18 many he has options for?

19 A. He has options for it looks like 1,875,833 right
20 now. That is my son.
21 Q. Let me direct your attention to the next page, 21
22 of Exhibit 11.
23 A. Okay.
24 Q. In note number 6.

25 A. Okay.
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1 Q. Have you had an opportunity to review note number
2 67?
3 A. Uh-huh.
4 Q. Does this refresh your recollection as to what
5 shares your son may own in CannaVest?
6 A. Speaks for itself.
7 Q. Okay. So tell me then?
8 A. Owns 980,000 shares of record. Again, I don't
9 know if those options are actual shares. I don't know
10 that. Beneficial owner of Mik Nik Trust which owns
11 750,000 shares. So the trust has 750,000 shares.
12 Q. And was granted a stock option for another
13 500,000 shares?
14 A. Correct.
15 Q. How did Mik Nik Trust come to own 750,000 shares
16 in CannaVest?
17 A. Obviously they bought them.
18 Q. You know that for sure?
19 A. No, I don't.
20 Q. Did you have any role in the transaction of
21 shares to Mik Nik Trust?
22 A. That is my son's trust, my son and my daughter's.
23 He handles that.
24 Q. So you had no role whatsoever?
25 A. No.
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Q. You mentioned you just came back from travel.

You've been traveling a lot recently?

A. Correct.

Q. Where were you?

A. Germany, Florida, Chicago, New York twice, LA.
Oh, the Bahamas.

Q. Any other locations you can think of?

A. In the last, what, three months, six months, nine
months?

Q. That was going to be my next question.

What period of time were you just referring to?

A. 1In the last three months.

Q. Any other destinations you've traveled to in the
last three months?

A. I've been to Denver twice -- or once. I'm sorry.
Once. San Diego. Vegas, obviously. I believe that's
it.

Q. Why were you in Germany?

A. My farmers are over there. We have 3,000 acres
growing over there. I was going to check on my partner
and the farms.

Who owns the farms?

Q.

A. Individual farmers.

Q. Farmers that you contract with?
A.

I have one farmer I contract with.
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Q. Okay.

A. He then --
MR. COFFING: Stop. When you say you, you
mean CannaVest; correct?
THE WITNESS: I'm sorry. CannaVest, not me.
No, I'm sorry. CannaVest. This is all CannaVest's.
CannaVest has one farmer over there that puts 50, 60
farmers together and grows our industrial hemp.
BY MR. EDWARDS:
Q. And you mentioned a partner over there.
A. Well, Daniel Crouse (phonetic spelling) he's not
a partner. He works for CannaVest.
Q. What does Daniel Crouse do for CannaVest?
A. He watches the farmers or watches the operation
over there.
Q. Why were you in Florida over the last three
months?

A. A trade show.

Q. Related to what?

A. Pardon me?

Q. What kind of trade show?

A CannaVest trade show trying to get our name out
there.

Q. CannaVest had its own trade show?

A. No. All these trade shows we go to we're part of
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100, 200 booths. We just had a booth there.

. So you were apart of a larger convention?
Correct.

What was the name of that convention?

I do not remember. I forget.

. Was it a medical marijuana related convention?

»o0 PP 0 ¢ 0

Either that or vape. We're getting into wvape
now. So it's either medical marijuana or vape, one of
the two.

Q. Explain to me what vape is?

A. Vape is a new trend that -- it's vapor
cigarettes, vapored hemp. There's even vape marijuana
in the states where it's legal. It's just a
smokeless -- you've seen people vape. It's the newest,
hottest thing out there, I guess.

Q. Any other reason for you to be in Florida?

A. No.

Q. Any other reason for you to be in Germany other
than monitoring your crops?

A. Not at all.

. Why were you in Chicago?
Same. Trade show.

Q
A
Q. Do you remember the name of that trade show?
A I do not.

Q

. Why were you in New York twice?
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A. Trying to raise money for CannaVest.

Q. How?

A. Through trade shows. There's a banker's trade
show where you went there and you presented your company
and you had investors. We were looking to raise money.
We needed money bad. So that's the reason I went to New
York twice, to entertain -- one I know was called
Midtown Investors, and the second one I forget the name
of . But it was conferences where you have 200, 300
investors. You go -- it was Joe and I. You go and
present your company, present your offering, present
your product and hopefully get investors.

Q. Were you able to attract investors?

A. Up until now, no. A lot of people will say they
want to invest, but no one was -- one guy has stepped
up, Redwood. We've closed, I think, a million dollars
with him in the last month or so. CannaVest has.

Q. What's his name?

A. Redwood Investments, I believe it is. Again,
this is all public knowledge. This is all -- you know,
we'll be filing our quarterly report. This will all be
in it.

Q. Do you have a particular point of contact with
Redwood Investments?

A. I do not. Joe Dowling does.
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1 Q. Who's Joe Dowling's point of contact with Redwood
2 Investments?

3 A. I have no idea.

4 Q Got to talk to Joe to figure that out?

5 A. Correct.

6 Q Did Redwood purchase stock in CannaVest?

7 A Redwocod -- it's not an option agreement. It's

8 close to hard money loan. They get -- they give us a

9 million dollars. They have to hold their stock for, I
10 believe, 90 days. They get a 40 percent discount off a
11 five-day average after, I believe, it's 90 days or six
12 months. Then they can sell their stock. Then I believe
13 it's a six-month hold, but they also get a 40 percent

14 discount off the five-day average which is a good deal
15 for them. We were desperate for the deal. 1It's not the
16 kind of deal you want to do, but when you're desperate,
17 you got to do what you got to do.

18 Q. Other than those shares, does Redwood have any

15 interest in CannaVest?

20 A. No.
21 Q. Why were you in Los Angeles during the last three
22 months?

23 A. Conference.

24 Q. You know the name of that conference?

25 A. No.
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Q. Why were you in the Bahamas for the last three

months?

A. I took a cruise with my family.

Q. Who all went?

A. My wife, my son, my daughter and her boyfriend.

Q. Did you open any bank accounts while you were on
that cruise?

A. No, sir.

Q. Why were you in Denver over the last three
months?

A. Trade shows.

Q. Do you remember the name of the trade shows
there?

A. It's the big -- it's a big smoke ocut. 1It's
ridiculous. It's the Denver annual 420. It's on April
20th, 420 show.

Q. Have you been involved in any trade shows
locally?

A. Yes.

Q. Which ones?

A. Last November there was an A4M conference here we
attended, and then prior to that, I was not there, but
CannaVest was. It was a medical marijuana conference
here that we had a booth at.

Q. Tell me about your foreign travel for the last
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five years. Where have you been?

A. Germany. I went there -- my son and I went there
two years ago, met Daniel, and we then traveled to
Austria, Holland, about four different countries. And
Germany is basically it. That's where I've been.

That's where our business is at.

Q. Over the last five years?

A. Uh-huh.

Q. Any other countries, any other foreign travel for
the last five years?

A. Like I said, we got in the car and we traveled,
you know, from country to country. It was a four-day
road show is what it was.

Q. So one trip?

A Correct.

Q. Where you visited about four different countries?
A. Correct.

Q. Germany, Austria?

A France. I believe that was it.

Q. Who paid for that cruise that you took to the
Bahamas with your wife?

A. My wife.

Q. With what money?

A. Her money.
Q

. When did you take that cruise?
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Pardon me?

. When did you take that cruise?

Four weeks ago.

10 P | @ B

. This is out of the money she received based upon
the post-marital settlement agreement?

A. Correct.

Q. So over the last five years, you've only had one
trip outside of the United States?

A. I've probably been to Germany two or three times.

Q. Any other foreign countries in the last five
years?

A. No.

Q. Have you ever been to the Cook Islands?

A. No.

Q. Have you ever opened up any bank accounts in
other countries?

A. No. Well, yes. GCermany.

Q. Okay.

A Two years ago.

Q. Why'd you open up an account in Germany two years
ago?

A. I was talked intc it by Daniel, and I wanted to
get euros. He just said why don't you open an account?
I think I put $500 in it

Q. So you deposited the money and withdrew the
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1 euros?
2 A. Yes. Well, I cashed in euros. I deposited the
3 $500, and I got, I believe, $500 in euros.
4 Q. And you withdrew those euros?
5 A. No. I put the $500 in. I believe it was like --
6 the 500 U.S. came to, I believe, 320 euros which I left
7 in the bank which is still there, less the monthly fees.
8 And then I just took $500 cash out of my pocket and got
9 euros.
10 Q. And you still hold those euros today?
11 A. No. Those were spent.
12 Q. Do you have any other accounts in foreign
13 countries?
14 A. No.
15 Q. Have you ever had any foreign accounts other than
16 the one in Germany you just mentioned?
17 A. Years ago on this elaborate -- elaborate John
18 Dawson plan, there was some kind of an account in some
19 -~ I don't know -- south -- south funding somewhere. I
20 don't know the details on it. The Laguna house wasg in
21 it. The Laguna house was lost. So that was the only
22 account I was aware of. And that was through John
23 Dawson, an attorney.
24 Q. How did you go about getting that account set up
25 overseas?
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A. He handled it.
Q. Did you play any role?
A. No. 2And again, it was a Laguna house. He -- it
was some kind of elaborate -- I should have paid more

attention. Some kind of elaborate, you know, where I
gave him the -- he had the mortgage on Crescent Bay or
something like that, and they loaned money against it to
protect 1t or whatever. It didn't work because the
house got taken.

Q. Why'd you go through that elaborate set up?

A. That's a good question. Stupidity.

Q You regret that elaborate set up then?

A. Very much so.

Q Why?
A Probably because I spent close to 60, $70,000 on

him for absolutely nothing.

Q. You still work with Mr. Dawson?
A. Not at all.

Q. Why not?

A.

There's nothing to discuss with Mr. Dawson. All
the LLCs he put together and all that are all history.
Q. Just as a reminder, I'm going to start using the
term you. It's the broad you: you, your wife, your
trust, any entity in which anybody holds any interest

in; is that fair?
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A. That's pretty broad.

Q. It is.

MR. COFFING: Can we separate out CannaVest?
Because that gets really confusing.

MR. EDWARDS: I'm done talking about
CannaVest.

THE WITNESS: Okay.

MR. COFFING: So don't be concerned with
CannaVest; is that what you're saying?

MR. EDWARDS: Correct.

MR. COFFING: Okay.

MR. EDWARDS: I can break it down intoc
individual questions, but we're going to be here --

THE WITNESS: Break it down please. I don't
want to answer broad questions.

MR. COFFING: Let me -- can I just take a
minute and help speed this along because I know what
you're trying to -- can we step out for a second?

MR. EDWARDS: Sure. Take a break.

(A break was taken from 11:27 a.m. through

11:32 a.m.)

BY MR. EDWARDS:
Q. So when we left off, we were discussing how I
intend to use the term you simply as a method to

streamline the judgment debtor examination. Again, only
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if you're comfortable with it, my intent is that you

applies to you, your wife, separately or collectively,
the Mona Family Trust, or any entity in which you, your
wife, or the trust hold an interest; is that fair?

A. Correct.

MR. COFFING: We clarified, so I think he's
good. If he needs to break it down, we'll break it
down.

BY MR. EDWARDS:
Q. Do you have an ownership interest in any real
property in Nevada?
A. The Mona Family Trust[ the house.
. Okay. The Red Arrow house?

Correct.

Q
A
Q. Any other real property in Nevada?
A No.

Q. Do you own any real property in any other state?
A. No. Again, I was involved in a lot of LLCs.
There may be one minor one left in Arizoma. I don't
know. My tax records would show that where I have a
minor interest. At one time I was in 15 different LLCs,
which are all history. So there may be a minor one. I
believe there's AZ12 or something like that in Arizona

that I have 2 percent ownership -- or I did. I think it

may have been dissolved this year.
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property back?

A.

Q.

any real property?

A.

Q.

an interest?

A.

© B o B O o

A.

Emerald Suites listed for a while. I did some business

with him.

Q.

somebody else?

A.

Q.
Al
Q.
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I think I saw in an email that somebody toock that

Yes.

So other than the Red Arrow property, do you own

No.

And that applies to any entity in which you own

No.

Did you use to own a property in Big Bear?
Correct.

What happened to that property?

Sold it.

To who?

Chris Bentley.

Who's Chris Bentley?

Chris Bentley is a real estate guy that had my

Did he buy the property personally or for

Through an LLC.
Does your wife know Chris Bentley?
Yes.

Do you know what the name of the LLC was that
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purchased the Big Bear property?

A. No.

Q. Did you have any agreement with him that you
would continue to use the Big Bear property?

A. I use it when he's not using it or when it's not
being used.

Q. Do you pay rent for it?

A. No.

Q. How do you come about having that arrangement
with Mr. Bentley?

A. Well, I pay a couple of the minor bills. And,
you know, I made a lot of money for Chris, and he
realized the situation I was in. So he allows me to use
it when he's not using it.

Q. How often does he use it?

A. I don't know.

Q. How often do you use it?

A. T was up there New Years was the last time.

Q. Do you regularly visit Big Bear and specifically
your old house on New Years?

A. I try to.

Q. As it sits today, do you have any interest in the
property at Big Bear?

A. No.

Q. Does your wife have any interest in the property
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Bear?

No.

Do either you or your wife have an interest in an
that has an interest in the Big Bear property?
No.

Do you own any commercial buildings?

No.

Do you have any properties that you rent out?

No.

Who owns the property in San Diego that you stay
Nick Filardo.
Who's Nick Filardo?

He's a friend of mine for the last 15, 18, 20

What's your relationship with Nick Filardo other

than being friends?

A.

o o o0 r 0 ¥ 0O

Just very good friends.

Were you business partners?

At one time he was an investor in CannaVest.
Is he still?

No.

What happened to his interest in CannaVest?
He sold it.

When did Mr. Filardo purchase the property in San
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Diego?

A. About six months ago, maybe. Again, there's a
document here that shows that. So I don't want to guess
and be wrong and come back and say it was five months,
SO. ..

Q. What money did Mr. Filardo use to purchase the
property in San Diego?

A. I have no idea. His personal money.

You played no role in that transaction?
No.

Why --

Q.
A,
Q.
A. I helped find the property for him.
Q. Okay. Why was he looking for property?
A. He likes San Diego and comes down there a lot.
Q. Any other reason he was looking for a property in
San Diego?
A. No.
Q. So does Mr. Filardo stay at the condo in San
Diego as well?
A. Not -- he hasn't since he bought it. I'm in it.
Q. Okay. --
A. He bought it as an investment.
Q. So I thought you just said though he was looking

at the property because he wanted to stay in San Diego?

A. Well, he does come, but he doesn't stay at the
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place where I'm at.

Q. So you were shopping for an investment property
for him?

A. Yes.

Q. How did you come about finding this particular
property?

A. It was in the same building I was renting.

Q. Same unit?

A. No.

Q. You were renting --

A. Wait a second. I'm sorry. I rented this unit a
year prior -- yes, CannaVest did rent this unit a year
pricr. 1I've had two different units in the same

building. I had unit 302, I believe, 1t was, which I
rented, and then CannaVest rented 1101 for a year.

Q. So Mr. Filardo purchased unit 1101 from
CannaVest?

A. No. CannaVest just rented it. CannaVest never
owned it.

Q. Who owned it when CannaVest was renting 110172

A. Jackie -- I forget Jackie's last name. Jackie
and Michael. I forget their last name.

Q. Do you know Jackie and Michael?

A. Just from the building. That's it.

Q. Do you have any other relationship with Jackie
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and Michael?

A. Not at all.

Q. So you became aware that the unit that CannaVest
was renting for you was up for sale?

A. Correct.

Q. And you referred that to Nick Filardo?

A. Correct.

Q. And Nick Filardo is using this as an investment
property?

A. Correct.
How much rent do you pay on the property?
I don't.

. Why's that?

b= B &

The property needed a lot of work, not a lot of
work. It needed fixing up, needed decorating, walls
painted, things like that. And my wife offered her
services. And again, Nick has been a friend. I made
Nick a lot of money over the years, and Nick just
offered it up.

Q. For how long?

A. I believe it's one year. The end of the year
he'll probably try to charge rent.

Q. What work did your wife do to the unit?

A. Took out a wall, minor work, nothing -- you know,

painting, stuff like that. Nothing major.
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Q. Did you have to get a permit to take out the
wall?
A. No.

Q. Do you know how much that property is worth?

A. He paid, I believe, a million-four, a
million-five for it. Probably worth -- I don't know
what it's worth.

Q. You think it's worth more now?

A. I believe so.

(Exhibit 12 was marked for identification.)
BY MR. EDWARDS:
Q. I'm showing you what's been marked as Exhibit 12.
Do you recognize this document?
A. Yes, I do.
What is it?

A. It's the rental lease agreement between Nick and

Q. When you say Nick and I, is Nick Bamburgh
Holdings, LLC?

A. That's the LLC he used to purchase it. Oh, I was
wrong. It's three years.

Q. Do you have any other business dealings currently
with Mr. Filardo?

A. No.

Q. Do you have any other current business dealings
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1 with Bamburgh Holdings?

2 A. No.

3 Q. So for taking down a wall and doing some

4 painting, Mr. Filardo offered you three years free rent?
5 A. Well, we have an agreement, verbal agreement,

6 after a year we'll sit down and talk. I promised him

7 that. If I financially can handle it.

8 Q. Okay. 1Is Mr. Filardo giving you this rent free

9 as a favor to CannaVest?

10 A. No. I pay -- I pay the taxes. I pay the HOA. I
11 pay everything that has to do with the condo. So he's
12 basically getting the equity built up for a year, two
13 years without putting a penny into it.
14 Q. Equity in what sense?

15 A. Equity in the property.

16 Q. You're saying appreciation of the property?

17 A. Appreciation, I'm sorry.
18 Q. You're not doing anything to add equity to the
19 property, are you?
20 A. No. Appreciation.
21 Q. Do you have any other verbal agreements with Mr.
22 Filardo?
23 A. No.
24 Q. Does Mr. Filardo owe you money?
25 A. No.
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Do you owe Mr. Filardo money?

No.

Mr. Filardo bought this investment property --

= o B .

Oh, wait a second. No, I don't believe he does.
Years ago he borrowed, like, $60,000. I believe he paid
it back. We're talking eight, nine, ten years ago
maybe. But I believe he paid it back.

Q. To the best of your recollection, Mr. Filardo
purchased -- or borrowed $60,000 from you?

A. Eight, ten years ago.

Q. And to the best of your knowledge, he paid that

A. Correct.

Q. So to the best of your knowledge, as we sit here
today, Mr. Filardo does not owe you any money?

A. Correct.

Q. Can you understand why I'm puzzled why Mr.
Filardo would purchase this condo as an investment but
not charge you any rent?

A. Not at all. He's a very good friend of the
family. He's done very well with me over the years. He
has -- he owns a couple dispensaries in Denver and does
very well.

Q. Medical marijuana dispensaries?

A. Correct.
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Q. Do you do any work or consulting for Mr. Filardo?
A. No.
Q. Or his companies?
A. No.
Q. Have you ever?
A. No.
Q0. This lease says that the tenants are you and your
wife.

Do you see that on the first page?

A. Correct, vyes.

Q. On the last page of Exhibit 12, there's a
gignature line for your wife, but I don't see her
signature.

A. C(Correct.

Q Did your wife sign this lease?

A. Obviocusly not.

Q You know that for sure?

A Well --

Q. Well, she didn't sign this copy. Is there
another copy out there that she might have signed?

A. I don't believe so.

. Why didn't your wife sign this?

Nick didn't require it.

No.

Q
A
Q. Okay. Is anybody else providing you free rent?
A
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Q. Has anybody else provided you free rent in the

last five years?

A. Well, again, CannaVest paid -- my last year was
part of my salary. Free rent, no.

Q. And I'm not limiting it to just the San Diego
property. I'm talking about any property?

A. No.

Q. Okay. Have you ever heard of Lundene
Enterprises?

A. That sounds familiar. It may have been one of my
0ld LLCs. It doesn't ring that big of a bell.

(Exhibit 13 was marked for identification.)
BY MR. EDWARDS:

Q. I'm showing you what's been marked as Exhibit 13,
which is just a printout from the Nevada Secretary of
State's website, showing that your son is the resident
agent for Lundene Enterprises, LLC.

Do you see that?

A. Correct.

Q. Does this refresh your recollection as to what
Lundene Enterprises, LLC, is?

A. No, it does not.

Q. Do you recall having any association with Lundene
Enterprises, LLC?

A. You know, I remember the name, but, no,
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associlation, no.

Q. Do you have any recollection of why your son is a
resident agent for this entity?

A. This may be the entity that he put his condo in,
I'm guessing. Again, I'm guessing. He's the manager of
it. He created an LLC from what I hear, and I'm
guessing -- again, I'm guessing -- this is the LLC that
he put his unit in.

Q. Why do you believe your son put a property into
an LLC?

A. Well, he was recommended by an attorney to do it,
just put it into an LLC. You know how LLCs work.

Q. Do you know what attorney recommended that to
him?

A. I do not. My son's 29 years old. He has his own
life believe it or not.

Q. Was it John Dawson?

A. T don't think so. We haven't dealt with Jchn in
three or four years, three years.

Q. So other than advice of counsel, are you aware of
any other reason your son would have transferred the San
Diego condo into an LLC?

A. Probably good business. You have LLCs you put
properties in? .

Q. I do not.
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If you know, you know.

THE WITNESS: I don't.
MR. COFFING: Then say I

THE WITNESS: Okay.

MR. COFFING: We'll ask Tom questions later.

THE WITNESS: I'm sorry,

MR. EDWARDS: No worries.

is a frustrating process.

BY MR.

©

© ? L oI o ? © ? 10 P © ?

you --

THE WITNESS: No -- yes.
EDWARDS :
Do you own any securities?
No, sir.

Any stocks?

No, sir.
Bonds?

No, sir.
Derivatives?
No, sir.
CDs?

No, sir.

Any other sort of investments?

No, sir.

Page 108
MR. COFFING: Let's not ask him questions.

don't know.

Tom.

I understand this

And again, I'm using the broadest sense, the
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1 A. I understand.

2 Q. Does anybody owe you money?

3 A. Are you talking, like, 1,000, 2,000, 5,000? You
4 know, 1,000 here, 2,000, here or 3,000 here, yes, to

5 friends. I mean, you know, that I'll never see again.

6 Any large sums of money? No.

7 Q. Let's break it down then.

8 Does anybody owe you more than $10,000?

9 A. Chris Bentley borrowed 100,000 off me eight years
10 ago. He still owes that, which I'll never see. Matt
11 Sawina -- that kid's like my second son -- borrowed

12 10,000 six, seven, eight years agc for college I'll

13 never see.

14 Q. How do you spell his last name?

15 A. S-A-W-I-N-A. Borrowed to go to college.

16 Q. Okay.

17 A. I believe that's it.

18 Q. Okay.

19 A. Wait a second. You just said that includes my
20 wife and everything. My son owes my wife money. So I
21 don't want to -- you know.
22 Q. I appreciate the clarification.
23 And how much does your son owe your wife?
24 A. She won't tell me, but I'm guessing it's, like, 8
25 or 900,000 for the condo . So I apologize for the no.
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I realized you're encumbering my wife also.

Q. Any does anybody else owe you more than $10,000?

A. I don't believe so.

Q. So you loaned Chris Bentley $100,000.

Has he ever made any payments on that loan?

A. No. But he did -- no, he has not.

Q. Was there a loan agreement drafted up?

A. No.

o} It was just a handshake deal?

A. Yes.

Q. I'm puzzled why you say you're never going to see
it back?

A. I just don't think it's high on his list right
now.

Q. But he does own your cabin in Big Bear; correct?

A. Right.

Q. So he's not doing too badly for himself?

A. That's what I mean.

Q. What do you mean?

A. Well, I've told him that too.

Q. You told him what?

A. I told him I want money for it, and I've not

received any money.

Q.
A,

Is that why he lets you stay at the cabin?

I don't know if it's guilt or whatever. I don't
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1 know.

2 Q. When you go up there to visit Big Bear, he

3 doesn't charge you any rent, does he?

4 A. No.

5 Q Do you hold any claims against any parties?

6 A One more time.

7 Q. Do you have any claims against any other parties?
8 A No.

9 Q. Do you have any judgments against anybody?

10 A. I filed a judgment about eight or ten years ago
11 against -- I put a deposit down for an office building
12 up on 215, which I lost about 70 or $80,000 for. And my
13 attorney pursued it and got a judgment, but nothing

14 happened with it. That's probably eight, nine, ten

15 years ago.
16 Q. Who was that judgment against?

17 A. The ex-owner of the property.
18 Q. Do you know the owner's name?
19 A. No. It was -- Copper Point was the name of the
20 office condo that I was buying a unit in.
21 Q. And in that case there was actually a lawsuit
22 filed®?
23 A. Correct.
24 Q. Taken all the way to judgment?
25 A. Correct.
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Was anything ever collected on that judgment?

No.
Do you know if the judgment was ever renewed?
I don't think so.

Was there an individual defendant in that case or

just an entity?

A. It was an entity that eventually, I gquess, filed
bankruptcy.

Q. Are you aware of any other judgments that you
made?

A. That I may hold?

Q. (Nods head.)

A. No.

Q. And same for your wife, the trust?

A. No.

Q. We're right up on noon. Do you want to take a

quick lunch break?

MR. COFFING: Yeah, keep it quick so we can

get done today. However long you want to take.

MR. EDWARDS: Half hour.
MR. COFFING: See you back here at 12:30.
(A break was taken from 11:55 a.m. through

12:32 p.m.)

BY MR. EDWARDS:

Q.

Sir, we discussed your cars, the 2006 Mercedes
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and the 2013 or 'l4 Jaguar; correct?

Al
Q.
Al
Q.
A.
Q.
Al

(Nods head.)

What color is the Mercedes?

Pewter.

I'm not good with my colors.

Silver.

Okay. Do you have any debt on the that car?

I borrowed $25,000 from Tracy Secchiarly three

years ago on it. Tracy S-E-C-C-H-I-A-R-L-Y.

Q.

o » oo P

not.

Q.
A.
Q.
A.
Q.
A.
Q.
A,
Q.

Have you paid any money on that debt?

No.

You still owe the full amount?

(Nods head.)

IS there any debt against the Jaguar?

I don't know if my wife put that against it or
I don't think so.

You didn't put any debt against it?

I did not, no.

Where is the Mercedes registered?

Las Vegas.

Where is the Jaguar registered?

Las Vegas.

Do you know the license plate of the Mercedes?
No.

And the license plate number of the Jaguar?
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No.

I take it you also don't know the VIN numbers?
Pardon me?

You don't know the VIN numbers for either?

No.

But I take it the registration would give you
VIN numbers; right?

The registration has everything on it.

We don't have the registration for the Jaguar,

but you have that in your possession though?

o 2o P

No.

Your wife does?

My wife does, I'm sure.
What is Scarlet Property?

Scarlet Property was another LLC that John Dawson

set up probably seven, eight, nine years ago. We had a

couple properties in it. I don't know which ones they

were.

I believe one of them was Laguna, and I don't

know the other one, but it's history. I believe the LLC

is dissolved.

No other assets in Scarlet Properties --

No.

-- to your understanding? Just as a reminder --
I know. I'm sorry.

That's okay. I'm not trying to be rude. Just
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1 trying to make the record clear.

2 A. As I answered, you were talking. I realized that
3 was wrong.

4 Q. So no assets in Scarlet Properties that you're

5 aware of it?

6 A. No.

7 Q. Is any money owed to Scarlet Properties that

8 you're aware of?

9 A. Not that I'm aware of.

10 Q. Did we already talk about Dunholm Limited?
11 A. It's another LLC. I believe that was a Big Bear
12 LLC.

13 Q. Okay.

14 A I think.
15 Q. Okay. Was that Mr. Bentley's LLC?

16 A I believe so. I'm not sure.

17 (Exhibit 14 was marked for identification.)
18 BY MR. EDWARDS:

19 Q. Sir, I'm showing you what's been marked Exhibit
20 14.
21 Do you recognize this document?
22 A. Sounds familiar, loocks familiar. I don't
23 recognize it though.
24 Q. Go ahead and take a minute to review.
25 A. Okay.
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Q. After reviewing it does this refresh your

recollection of what Exhibit 14 is?

A. Yes.

Q. What is it?

A. Looks like a deed of trust for the Big Bear
house.

Q. In favor of Scarlet Properties; correct?

A. Correct.

Q. And does this refresh your recollection that
Dunholm Limited is Mr. Bentley's entity that bought the
Big Bear property?

A. Yes.

Q. On the third page of Exhibit 14, it's labeled
page 2 of 6.

Do you see the section that says obligation
secured?

A. Correct.

. And the obligation is for $65,0007?

Correct.

Q
A
Q. Was Scarlet ever paid the $65,0007
A I do not remember.

Q Do you remember Dunholm paying the $65,000?

A I don't remember.

Q. Had Dunholm paid the $65,000 to Scarlet, where

would that money have gone?
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Obviously into Scarlet Properties I would guess.

Does Scarlet Properties have a bank account?
They did. I don't know if they still do or not.

Where did they have a bank account?

>0 oo P

I have no idea. Where do they have an account?
Which bank?

Q. Did they have a banking account?

A. Some bank. I have no idea.

Q. Were you in control of the Scarlet Properties?

A. My wife and I, vyes.

Q. So you would have had a role in establishing
those bank accounts for Scarlet Properties; correct?

A. Correct.

Q. Did you produce any documents in this case as it
relates to the bank accounts for Scarlet Properties?

A. I don't recall.

Q. Do you know if Mr. Bentley ever made any payments
on the $65,000 note?

A. I don't know.

Q. What documents can we look at that determine
that?

A. Well, if there was a Scarlet Properties bank
account, obviously it would be deposited into Scarlet.

Q. Okay. Any documents we could look at to confirm

whether or not Dunholm Limited made any payments on the
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note owed to Scarlet Properties?
A. No.
Q. Nov?
A. I don't -- I don't have any documents. Again,

this was, what, four years, five years ago.
(Exhibit 15 was marked for identification.)

BY MR. EDWARDS:

Q. 8ir, I'm showing you what's been marked as
Exhibit 15, which is a series of loan agreements.

Do you recognize these loan agreements?

A. Yes.

Q. And they're all for relatively small amounts of
money; correct?

A. Correct.

Q. Why did you enter in these series of loan
agreements in November of 20137

A. Obviously I was borrowing money.
Why were you borrowing the money?
To use it to pay bills.
What bills?
Regular everyday bills.

You borrowed, for example, $2,000 from your son

g
o}

ay bills?

It looks like that.

© » " oo P 0 ? ©

Do you recall borrowing $2,000 from your son to
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pay bills?

A. Obviously it's here and there's a check. So do I
recall it? No. But it's very obvious. It's right
here.

Q. Other than your desire to pay bills, can you
think of any other reason you entered into these series
of loans?

A. No.

Q. Are there any documents that would reflect why
you entered into these series of loans?

A. No.

Q. Do you have any written communications with any
of these borrowers?

A. Michael Mona, of course, yes. Shannon Filardo, I
haven't talked to her in a couple years.

Q. 1Is that Nick Filardo's wife?

A. Ex-wife.

Chris Moreo works at CannaVest.

Q. As what?

A. He handles all the shipping, shipping of
products.

Soaring Peak, LLC. I believe this is Hammid.

Q. Who?

A. Hammid. Hammid and Roche. I forget their last

name even. A friend of mine.
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1 Q. Can you spell those first names?

2 A. H-A-M-M-I-D and R-O-C-H-E. Again, I'm guessing.
3 Looks like he wrote it out of his Auto Boutique,
4 his car lot. 2And Mike Minetti is a friend of mine.

5 Q. Have you made any payments on these loans?

6 A. T haven't made payments on any loans.

7 Q. On any of those loans?

8 A. No.

9 Q. Or any loans period?

10 A. Any loans period.

11 Q. At what point in time did you stop making

12 payments on your loans in general?

13 A. I don't think I ever really started making

14 payments.
15 Q. So November 18, 2013, the date of these loan
16 agreements, it's fair to state that you were not paying
17 loans that you owed?

18 A. I believe so.

19 Q. You believe that's accurate?
20 A. Correct.
21 (Exhibit 16 was marked for identification.)
22 BY MR. EDWARDS:
23 Q. I'm showing what's been marked as Exhibit 16.
24 Do you recognize this document?
25 A. Yes, I do.
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Q. What is it?

A. It's a loan document from -- holder is Adam
Curtis.

Q. To you and your wife?

A. Correct.

Q. In the amount of $800,0007?

A. Correct.

Q. Did Mr. Curtis loan this money to you?

A. Correct.

Q. Have you paid it back?

A. No.

Q. And you used this $800,000 to pay the settlement
with Bank of America; correct?

A. Correct.

Q. And your settlement with Bank of America was for
$800,000; correct?

A. Correct.

(Exhibit 17 was marked for identification.)

BY MR. EDWARDS:

Q. Sir, I'm shbwing you what's been marked as
Exhibit 17.

Do you recognize this document?
A. Yes.
Q. What is it?

A. Cashier's check made out to me for $500,000.
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1 Q. Who's this check from?
2 A. Bart Mackay.
3 Q. This coincides with the date of your prior
4 judgment debtor examination.
5 Why is that?
6 A. No idea.
7 Q. Were you holding this check when your judgment
8 debtor examination was taken last time?
9 A. Not at all.
10 Q. When was this check deposited?
11 A. I have no idea.
12 Q. Where was this check deposited?
13 A. I believe in my wife's account.
14 Q. Why in your wife's account?
15 A. She demanded it.
16 Q. So if your wife demands money, you give it to
17 her?
18 A. Well, not exactly. TIt's been 32 years. She
19 hasn't got the time of day. She's 56, 57 years old,
20 been up and down numerous times and is tired of it. So
21 for 32 years she demanded nothing. Which I say 30
22 years, 28, whatever. ©Now it's changed. She's tired of
23 the ups and downs. She wants to basically lead her own
24 life with her own money.
25 Q. So the money you used -- I'm sorry. The money
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you received from Mr. Mackay, this is for purchase of

your 50 percent interest in Roen and the purchase of
your $2.6 million note to Roen; correct?

A. I'm sorry. One more time?

Q. This $500,000 check was Mr. Mackay purchasing
half your interest in Roen and purchasing your $2.6
million note to Roen?

A. Correct.

Q. And you gave this money to your wife because she
demanded it and deserved it in your mind?

A. Gave it to her, loaned it to her, any way you
want to do it. I consider it -- I don't know how I
consider it.

Q. There's no loan agreement associated with this
check, is there?

A. No.

Q. And no loan agreement associated with you giving
this money to your wife?

A. No. Again, just verbal.

Q. What's verbal?

A. Well, I told her we'll work it out down the road,
the $500,000.

Q. Work it out down the road; what are you referring
to?

A. TI don't know. When it gets down the road, I'll
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let you know.

Q. We spoke about the deeds of trust that Mr. Siefen
holds against your Red Arrow property.

A. Correct.

Q. What other business dealings do you have with Mr.
Siefen?

A. Mr. Siefen, I met him in 1999 or 2000. I came
out of bankruptcy. I met him through Flinny Ray
(phonetic spelling) who is a host at the Bellagio Hotel.
I know Flinny. I said, Flinny, I need investors. I
need to find a million-two to buy my first piece of
property out of bankruptcy. He introduced me to Mike
Siefen. Mike Siefen then, I believe, he gave 200,000
towards the million-two to buy the property on Las Vegas
Boulevard for my very first property when I came out of
bankruptcy that Mike Shustick funded. I had to raise
the whole million-two from investors. So total
investors paid for the million-two, and I got, like, six
or seven different investors.

Q. And what was Mr. Shustick's role as it relates to
this property you purchased?

A. He gave me the construction loan. He was a hard
money lender. I borrowed, I believe, $16 million. I
believe it was, like, 8 points at 16 percent interest.

You know, when with you come out of bankruptcy, you're
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broke. You don't have any money. You got tarnish
against your name. He's a hard money lender. In other
words, you know what they do. They take advantage of a
situation, and he was my only exit. He was my only way
to borrow money to get back on my feet. So I had to
sleep with the devil.

MR. COFFING: Can you clarify was that Mike
Shustick or an entity?

THE WITNESS: I'm sorry. It was Vestin
Mortgage. When I think of Mike Shustick, I think of
Vestin Mortgage.
BY MR. EDWARDS:

Q. You first pulled $1.2 million in investors' funds
to purchase this property?

A. Correct. Mike wanted the property free and clear
before he would lend me the money to build the 396 units
on it.

Q. You said this property was on Las Vegas
Boulevard?

A. 9145 South Las Vegas Boulevard.

Q. And then you subsequently purchased or tock out a
loan with Vestin in the amount of roughly 16 million for
construction?

A. 13, 16, something like that.

Q. What happened to that project?
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A. I lost it to B of A three years ago, four years

ago, five years ago.

Q. Was that the subject of the 800,000 settlement
with B of A?

A. That was one of them. There were two properties
involved. One was Emerald Suites Las Vegas Boulevard
and Emerald Suits Cameron, which Mike Shustick, the
lender, lent me money on that one also. No bank would
touch me.

Q. Did you eventually buy out Mr. Siefen with money
from Bank of America?

A. No. I bought out Mr. Shustick from First
Republic Bank. First Republic Bank was a bank that I
knew from working with my brother-in-law for years. Jim
Baumburgher took Vestin Mortgage out after one year.

Q. Your brother-in-law is Jim Baumburgher?

A. No. My brother-in-law is Bob Bigelow. I worked
for Bob for a long period of time. When I was working
with Bob, he dealt with First Republic Bank. I got to
know First Republic Bank. They came in and they took
Mike Shustick out.

Q. Same Bob Bigelow that's doing the aerospace work?

A. Yes.

Q. Other than that initial borrowing from Mr. Siefen

as it relates to this Las Vegas Boulevard property, what
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other business dealings have you had with them?

A. It wasn't a borrow. It was an investment.

Q. Investment, okay. I guess did Mr. Siefen lose
his $200,000 as it relates to that property?

A. Correct.

Q. On all of it?

A. He lost it.

Q. He received no money back whatsoever?

A. He may have received 20 or 30,000 over the years
as dividends on profit, maybe.

Q. Okay. What other business dealings have you had
with Mr. Siefen?

A. We became somewhat friends after that. He
invested in Emerald Suites Nellis which he made money
on. I think he made about a miliion-two on that one.

Q. Was that your project as well?

A. Yes. Again funded by Mike Shustick because no
bank would touch me. So I was paying these ridiculous
rates, but I was in action; let's put it that way. He
invested with me in a property in Palm Springs which we
lost close to 4 or $5 million on. That's -- hence the
note I have against him -- or he has against me. He
invested in CannaVest, which he did well. What else did
he invest? I think we had about three locan deals total,

Mike and I over the years.
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Has Mr. Siefen sold his interest in CannaVest?

I believe so, yes.

And he did well?

- o R &

Well, he paid a dollar a share and sold it for,
like, $2 a share, 1.50, something like that. So not bad
for six month's work.

Q. Do you know how much he made total from selling
these CannaVest shares?

A. No.

Q. Are you involved in any current business deals
with Mr. Siefen?

A. No.

Q. Why not?

A. Not building. Not -- not -- haven't done any
construction in four or five years. We still remain
friends. We talk.

Q. So you borrowed 1.2 million from him as it
relates to a failed project in California; correct?

A. Well, he signed on the notes. Mike Shustick
funded the original property at the high rate. Mike
Siefen had his bank out of Virginia Beach take Mike
Shustick out. So he was responsible for the note. Mike
Siefen and I signed on the notes. When we lost the
property in Palm Springs, Mike Siefen had to pay his

end. I didn't have the money. Hence the loan against
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me .

Q. For 1.2 million?

A. Something like that. 1.242, something like that.
Plus I believe there's another 200,000 he lent me for
living, something like that.

Q. So in addition, Mr. Siefen lent you another
$200,000 for living expenses?

A. Years ago. Six, seven, eight years ago.

Q. Why did you borrow that money f£rom him?

A. To feed my family. Not because I wanted to be in
debt. To feed my family.

Q. So if we look back at the bank records, we'll see
that $200,000 going towards grocery bills?

A. We don't eat that much. I'm sure it's for
everything, you know, power, gas, water, rent, everyday
living expenses, yes.

Q. So you didn't make subsequent investments with
the $200,000°?

A. No.

Q. Other than the judgment by, I guess, in favor of
Far West against you, are you aware of any other
judgments against you?

MR. COFFING: There's a pending suit. I --
you must know about it.

THE WITNESS: There's two pending suits
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judgments yet, no.

BY MR. EDWARDS:

Q.
A.

Q.

talked about earlier?

A.

house and B of A on that, but other than that, I don't

believe so.

Q.

Al

filed.

Q.

not yet discussed today?

Al

Q.

that's Exhibit 16.

Al

Q.

$800,000 loan secured on absolutely nothing.
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Are you aware of any liens against you?
No.

Again, I'm using the you in that broad sense we

Well, the typical lien of course that's on the

Do you have any plans to file for bankruptcy?

No, but I didn't have plans in 2000 either when I

Do you have any other indebtedness that we have

I don't know. I don't know. I don't think so.

Going back to the loan from Adam Curtis, and

The loan was not secured on anything, is it?
No, sir.

These seem like very friendly terms to get an

Do you agree?
I agree.

Why was Mr. Curtis willing to make you this loan
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for $800,000?

A. I guess he realized how desperate I was, how much
I needed the money. And like I said, Adam has made
money with me prior over the years. So he's doing very
well right now. He knew how desperate I was, and he
helped me.

Q. And because of your good relationship with Mr.
Curtis, it was relatively easy to get this loan?

A. Not at all.

Q. Why?

A. I had to, you know -- $800,000 is a lot of money.
It took me a little while, but I convinced him. Was it
easy? No. Did it happen? Yes.

Q. And you made no payments on this note; correct?

A. None.

Q. We discussed this earlier, your wife pays all
utilities; correct?

A. Correct.

Q. And to your knowledge all that money comes from
the post-marital settlement agreement?

A. I have no idea. If I had to guess, I'd probably
say yes, but that's guessing.

Q. Do you have credit cards?

- A. Yes.

Q. With whom do you have credit cards?
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A. Capital One, I have two cards. And I have an

America Express that's paid through Mona Co and
CannavVest.

Q. How does that work Mona Co and CannaVest?

A. CannaVest pays for all of my CannaVest expenses,
my travel, when I eat. They're very, you know, just
everyday expenses they pay. The balance gets paid from
Mona Co.

Q. So when you get an invoice in from your credit
card company, you identify the ones that -belong to
CannaVest, and the rest are paid by Mona Co?

A. Correct.

Using what money?

Q. Who pays the Capital One credit card statement?
A. I do.

Q. Personally?

A. Correct.

Q.

A.

The money I get from my paycheck.
MR. COFFING: What's left of it.
THE WITNESS: What's left of it.
MR. COFFING: Sorry.
BY MR. EDWARDS:
Q. Earlier you mentioned a bank account in the name
of the Mona Family Trust.

Do you remember saying it had one or $200 in
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there?

A. I do not recall the amount, but I believe there's
two different ones.

Q. Two different accounts?

A. I believe so. I believe I handed you -- again,
it's tough for me to say something because then you give
me a document a minute later that is -- I'm wrong on.

So I believe I may have given you two Mona Family Trust
accounts, and I believe the balance is very minimum to
-~ I keep it open. I put $100 every six months in it
just to keep the account open.

Q. So you believe there may be multiple accounts for
Mona Family Trust?

A. I believe it's one or two. I'm not sure.

There's one for sure.

Q. Where's that one account that you can think of
for the Mona Family Trust?

A. I don't know which bank.

Q. Do you know for the two where would the second
account be for the Mona Family Trust? Any idea?

A. In a Las Vegas bank.

Q. But you're not sure which one?

A. I'm not sure which one.

Q. Are you a party to any settlement agreements,

other than the one we discussed with Bank of America?
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A. No.

Q. Are you receiving any settlement payments from
anybody?

A. No.

Q. Are you making any settlement payments to
anybody?

A. No.

Q. Are your parents still alive?

A. No, sir.

Q. Other than your children and your wife, do you

have any dependents?

A. No.

Q. How much cash do you have on hand?
A. $1800, $2,000 maybe.

Q. Where do you store that money?

A. At home.

Q. In a safe?

A. My drawer.

Q. Sock drawer?

A. No. Just a drawer.

Q. Just a drawer?

A. Yes.

Q. Kitchen drawer in your bedroom?

A. A drawer in my closet.

Q. Do you know if your wife has any money on hand?
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No idea.

. Do you have any safe deposit boxes?

No.

Lo R A o B

. Do you have any storage facilities?

A. Yes. We have, I believe, four facilities off of
Cheyenne.

Q. What do you store in those four storage
facilities?

A. A bunch of junk that if I ever had the time to
spend a day going through it, I could probably turn it
into one storage room. Christmas decorations, some old
Laguna furniture, a couple things from Big Bear, wy
daughter's furniture, stuff like that.

Q. Any vehicles?

A No.

Q. Any jewelry?

A No.

Q. Any valuables other than furniture?

A. Well, the furniture's not that wvaluable, but
that's about it.

Q. Can you think of any other assets you're storing
in the storage facility?

A. Family pictures, which are priceless.

Q. Anything else?

A. Just typical storage stuff that you keep in a
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storage unit; that you visit once a year.

Q. Do you have any plans to abandon or close any of
those storage facilitijes?

A. Definitely. When I get -- like I stated five
minutes ago, when I get three or four clear days here,
I'1l go there and probably turn those four into one.

Q. Do you have any current plans to do that?

A. No. Especially during the summertime when it's
150 degrees here.

MR. COFFING: And I just want to clarify
when you say facilities, you mean units?

THE WITNESS: Yes. TI'm sorry. Units,
storage units.
BY MR. EDWARDS:

Q. Do you have any storage units anywhere outside of
Las Vegas?

A. I have one in San Diego.

Q. What's in the San Diego storage unit?

A. Some furniture from my son, some mcre of my
daughter's furniture, some more Laguna furniture, two or
three bikes, you know. Again, more crap.

Q. Do you know the name of the storage unit,
facility in San Diego?

A. No.

Q. Do you know where it's located?
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It's located off of Harbor Drive.

So close to the condo that you stay at?

» o

Ten minutes.

Q. And what's the name of the storage facility here
in Las Vegas?

A. I can't recall.

Q. Do you have any records reflecting the name of
the storage facility in Las Vegas and San Diego?

A. Oh, yeah.

MR. COFFING: You want to leave a blank and
we'll £ill it in.

MR. EDWARDS: Okay. What I'd like is for
you to produce some tangible document that would show me
the name and account number, unit number, that sort of
thing.

MR. COFFING: Yeah, if we can get an
invoice, we'll do that.

MR. EDWARDS: Okay.

BY MR. EDWARDS:

Q. You have produced for us in this most recent
production all records related to any banks you have
that are open currently; correct?

A. To the best of my knowledge, ves.

Q. You think there may be bank accounts that may be

open now that you don't have knowledge of?
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A. No.

Q. How many bank accounts are you a signatory on
right now?

MR. COFFING: Are we still including
CannaVest? Because that was kind of before lunch. Do
you want to --

MR. EDWARDS: Yeah, this is sort of a broad
question. I want him to include CannaVest.

THE WITNESS: The CannaVest account
obviously, which I'm glad you reminded me. I believe
I'm on Mona Family Trust. I know I'm on the Chase
account, my Chase account. Probably Keisha (phonetic
spelling), I believe, I'm on. There may be others I'm
not aware of, but all the accounts I produced to you.
So I don't know if I'm a signor or not on those.

BY MR. EDWARDS:
Q. You mentioned Keisha. What is Keisha?
A. Keisha was another trust that John Dawson put
together years ago that was never used.
Q. So no assets in Keisha Trust?
No, sir.
. Never have been?

A
Q
A. No, sir.
Q. Who maintains your personal finances?
A

I do.
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Q. What about your business records?

A. Such as?

Q. Records relating to CannaVest. Who maintains
those?

A. In the office in San Diego.

Q. Any CannaVest records kept here in Las Vegas?

A. Yes. Kathleen does all the payroll and hiring of
employees and things like that here in Vegas.

Q. Do you have an accountant that you use?

A. Yes.

Q Who's that?

A Personal?

Q. Correct.

A Ed Wilson. CannaVest is PKF Accountants out of
San Diego.

Q. Do you have any other bookkeepers that work for

you?
A. Just the bookkeeper in San Diego.
Q. And what's his name?
A. Bill -- I foxget Bill's last name.

Q. 1Is he a bookkeeper for you personally or
CannaVest?

A. No. All CannaVest.

Q. When you sold the Big Bear property, did you sell

the furnishings inside as well?
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A. Most of them, vyes.

Q. What else was included in the sale of the Big
Bear property, real estate, furnishings, anything else?

A. No. Personal property I took.

Q. So couches, beds, chairs were all left behind and
sold as part of the property?

A. Correct.

Q Are they still in the property now?

A Yes.
Q. What does Keisha stand for?
A

Keisha was my old dog. Just like Scarlet was my

old dog.
Q. Do you have any insurance policies?
A. Yes.
Q. Tell me about them.

A. I have a 30-year term policy for $5 million that
my wife is the beneficiary on.

Q. Any other insurance policies?

A. Just a typical house, car, stuff like that.

Q. Are you aware if there's any cash value
associated with your life insurance policy?

A. Not at all.

Q. There is none or you're not aware of any?

A. There is none. It's a term policy. If I stop

paying tomorrow, the policy's over.
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Q. I'm going to use the term you again in the broad

sense, make sure we're both on the same page.
But have you sold or transferred any assets or
property in the last five years?

A. The Big Bear property you know about. The Laguna
house which got taken. Other than that, I don't believe
SO, no.

Q. Other than those two pieces of real estate, have
you sold any personal property in the last five years?

A. No.

Q. What did you do with the proceeds of the sale of
the Big Bear property?

A. Well, I don't know if I collected or not. After
you showed me that document, there was $65,000. I don't
know if I collected it or not.

Q. What was the purchase price of the Big Bear
property?

A. I don't remember.

Q. So you sold it, the Big Bear property, but you're
not sure whether you actually ever got paid?

A. Correct.

Q. Are you thinking about taking the Big Bear
property back for not getting paid?

A. If I could afford it, I would.

Q. Other than your income from CannaVest, what other
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sources of income, do you have?

A. None.

Q. For the past five years, other than your income
from CannaVest, what sources of income have you had?

A. Well, you saw the MINA stock. I believe I was
getting paid a couple thousand dollars a month from Mona
Co a few years ago. That stopped because it ran out of
money. I believe that's it.

MR. COFFING: Tom, may I prompt just for the
sake of completeness. Emerald Suites, I think, you had
some money towards the end, salary?

THE WITNESS: Oh.

MR. COFFING: I just wanted to be complete.

THE WITNESS: I never got paid for Emerald
Suites. I had to make money to get paid.

MR. COFFING: Okay.

THE WITNESS: And of course that workman's
comp deal, the 90-some thousand I told you about. And I
believe that's it.

BY MR. EDWARDS:

Q. You said when Mona Co ran out of money, they had
to stop paying you money?

A. Correct.

Q. Where does Mona Co's money come from?

A. Borrowed.
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1 Q. From what?
2 A. My son lent it 100,000 a couple years ago. Roen
3 Ventures lent 200,000 or 250, I believe, awhile ago.
4 It's all borrowed money.
5 Q. It never generated money in and of itself?
6 A. Well, when I was developing, yes. When I was
7 developing, I would charge, and Mcona Co held the
8 contractor's license. So each property they built, I
9 would charge a general contracting fee that went to Mona
10 Co. And when I was the in the Emerald Suites in the
11 business, I'd charge a management fee, a 10 percent
12 management fee. That went to Mona Co. So Mona Co was
13 being funded very good nine, ten years ago.
14 Q. But no business operations in the last five
15 years?
16 A. No.
17 Q. What is Desert Dream Properties, LLC?
18 A. Desert Dream, I believe that was a guy named Dave
19 Morgan. 2And I believe I may have invested in a house or
20 something with him years ago for -- I think he bought it
21 and sold it seven, eight, nine years ago. That sounds
22 like Dave Morgan.
23 Q. Do you still have any interest in Desert Dream
24 Properties, LLC?
25 A. No, I don't believe -- I don't know if I ever had
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1 an interest in it, but the answer's no.

2 Q. Do you know of any assets in Desert Dream

3 Properties, LLC?

4 A. No. Dave Morgan filed bankruptcy.

5 Q. You believe Dave Morgan is the‘one that formed

6 that LLC?

7 A. You know, it sounds familiar. I can't swear on
8 it, but I believe so.

9 Q. What is McCarran Plaza Suites, Inc.?

10 A. McCarran Plaza Suites is 18 acres of property on
11 the corner of Las Vegas Boulevard and 215, which I had
12 free and clear in 1998. It was worth probably $2

13 million an acre that I lost in bankruptcy. I was going
14 to put another casino and daily/weeklies there, but it
15 never happened.

16 Q. Do you continue to hold any interest in McCarran
17 Plaza Suites, Inc.?

18 A. Not at all. That was sold through the bankruptcy
13 for pennies on the dollar.
20 Q. Roen Ventures, LLC, we spoke a little bit about
21 already?

22 A. Correct.

23 Q. Do you have any current interest in Roen

24 Ventures, LLC?

25 A. No.
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Q. But you are still working for Roen Ventures as a

consultant?

A. Correct.

Q. And your wife has a convertible $1 million note
in Roen?

A. Correct.

Q. And if she converts, she gets $1 million in
CannaVest stock?

A. Correct.

Q. What is Speedway Industrial 10, LLC?

A. It was, I believe, 10 or 20 acres that I bought
outside of the speedway that I took about a $3 million
bath on.

Q. When was that?

2002. 2003 maybe.
That's when you purchased it?
Maybe a little later than that.

. So not too much longer?

o oo

Wait a second. Let me think back now. No, it
was probably, like, '07 or '08 maybe. It was later than
what I just said. It was vacant land. Never developed.
It was repossessed.

Q. By whom?

A. By the guy I bought it from.

Q. Who's that?
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1 A. I don't know. It was bought through a Realtor.
2 Q. So you purchased it and there was a carryback?

3 A. Correct. Oh, Mark Leftcowitz (phonetic

4 spelling).

5 Q. Is he a friend of yours?

6 A. Not at all. I just remember his name.

7 Q. Can you spell his last name?

8 A Leftcowitz? You could probably spell it as good
9 as I could. Nice Italian guy.
10 Q. Who is New Times, LLC?

11 A. New Times, LLC. I believe that was another LLC
12 that I had a piece of property in that I ended up

13 losing.

14 Q. What piece of property?

15 A. I don't know. I want you to understand

16 something. I had, like, 15 or 17 at one time. I don't
17 know exactly. I don't know if it was in Arizona or Las
18 Vegas or what. I don't know. I don't remember.

19 Q. Do you remember when you lost the property at New
20 Times, LLC?

21 A. I lost everything around '08, '039. So I'd have
22 to say around then.
23 Q. What's M&M Development, Inc.?
24 A. M&M Development was my first development company
25 that I started 29 years ago when my son was born. It
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stood for Mike and Mike, and it was the company that I

built properties through for a long period of time.
Similar to Mona Co. It had a license. It built the
property. It charged, and then it charged management
fees. I lost that in bankruptcy in 2000.

Q. So you don't continue to hold any interest in M&M
Development, Inc.?

A. It's been dissolved since 2000, 1999, 2000,
something like that.

Q. What's Emerald Suites, LLC?

A. Emerald Suites. There was Emerald Suites Las
Vegas Boulevard, the one I just told you about when I
came out of bankruptcy on Las Vegas Boulevard, 396
units. There was Emerald Suites Tropicana which was
funded by Mr. Shustick, which I eventually sold that one
in -- I don't know -- 2006, maybe, 2007. I'm guessing.
There's an Emerald Suites Nellis. Three or four Emerald
Suites that I built back to back funded by a hard money
lender, Vestin Mortgage.

Q. Do you continue to own an interest in Emerald
Suites, LLC?

A. ©Not at all.

Q. Do you know are there any assets in Emerald
Suites, LLC?

A. Not at all.
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Q. What is Fudds, LLC?

A. Fudds was an LLC my son and I put together. We
were going to buy Fuddruckers in California and form the
LLC. Never went through with the deal, backed out.

Q. Did Fudds, LLC, ever hold any assets?

A. No. It was formed and never -- nothing happened
after that.

Q. What is M&M Ventures, LLC?

A. M&M Ventures was another LLC put together with
Mike Minetti -- you heard his name earlier -- a buddy of
mine. We had a couple of pieces of property in Arizona
which we eventually lost, and I believe my last return
showed the final -- finally ending the relation of M&M
Ventures.

Q. So you continue to hold an interest in M&M
Ventures, LLC?

A. Not at all.

Q. Are there any assets in M&M Ventures, LLC?

A. Has not been for three years, four years.

Q. Did you lose all of the properties in M&M
Ventures to foreclosure?

A. Yes.

Q. So you made no money off of those properties?

A. I made no money off of any of my LLCs in real

estate. I bought high and sold low.
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Q. What's Sunrise RV Park, Inc.?
A. Sunrise RV Park was part of a development -- a
development I started in 1996. It was where my casino

was going to go, right in between Boulder Station and
Sam's Town. I had, I believe, 18 acres there. And I
put together an RV park, which ended up getting lost in
my bankruptcy also.

Q. Do you continue to hold any interest in Sunrise
RV Park, Inc.?

A. No, sir.

Q. Are there any assets in Sunrise Park, Inc.?

A. No, sir.

Q. What is Food at Fifth, LLC?

A. Food at Fifth was another LLC that my son and I
put together. We were going to buy a sandwich store.
That never happened. That was on Fifth and something.
Downtown San Diego.

Q. Did Food and Fifth, LLC, ever hold any assets?

A. No, sir.

Q. Do you still own an interest in Food and Fifth,
LLC?

A. No.

Q. What is AZ12, LLC?

A. AZl2, LLC, is another piece of property I

purchased in Arizona which I lost.
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. Are there any assets of AZ12, LLC?
No, sir.

What is Stranger Than Fiction, LLC?

- o .S

That's a touchy one. That's a $75,000 investment
my wife made in some book over a three-martini lunch
that never happened. But it was tough for me to
complain about that when I lost millions of her dollars.
Ask her about that and you'll hear it.

Q. I did.

A. You probably heard it then.

Q. Are there any assets in the Stranger Than
Fiction, LLC?

A. No, sir.

Q. Do you or your wife still hold an interest in
Stranger Than Fiction, LLC?

A. I don't believe so, no.
. Are you aware of any plans to produce the book?
No. That went belly up also.

What is H&R Acquisition, LLC?

bR o B N o]

H&R Acquisition is another investment I had with
Hammid and Richie, a buddy of mine. A piece of
property, I believe, that was in Laughlin that we ended
up losing also.

Q. To foreclosure?

A. Foreclosure.
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Q. Did you make any money off of H&R Acquisition,
LLC?

A No, sir.

Q. Were there any assets in H&R Acquisition, LLC?

A No, sir.

Q. Employers Holding, Inc., is where you got the
roughly $90,000 that we spoke about earlier; right?

A. Correct.

Q. Do you own any interest in Employers Holding,
Inc.?

A. No, sir.

Q. Do you know if Employers Holding, Inc., owes you
any more money?

A. No. I -- they do not. I made sure of that.

Q. We discussed earlier that Bamburgh Holdings is
your landlord in San Diego; correct?

A. Correct.

Q. Do you have any other dealings with Bamburgh
Holdings, LLC?

A. No.

Q. Do you hold any interest in Bamburgh Holdings,
LLC?

A. No.

Q. Again, I'm using that in the broad sense. I'm

talking about you, your wife, the trust?
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1 A. No.

2 Q. Scarlet Holdings Limited Partnership. What is

3 that?

4 A. Again, that was named after my dog Scarlet, and

5 that was -- that was put together by John Dawson. And
6 like I said earlier, I believe that held my Laguna

7 property or maybe even Ironwood. I'm not sure. Maybe

8 Big Bear. I'm not sure. Like I said, John Dawson did a
9 real good job of creating nightmares. I guess if the

10 economy didn't crash, it wouldn't have been a nightmare,
11 but whatever.
12 Q. Are there any assets in Scarlet Holdings, LP?

13 A. No, sir.

14 Q. Do you continue to hold any interest direct or
15 indirect in Scarlet Holdings, LP?

16 A. No.

17 Q. We spoke about this, I think, earlier. Dunholm
18 Limited, LCC, which is, I think, you testified the

19 entity that purchased the Big Bear property; right?
20 A. Correct.

21 Q. You don't hold any interest in Dunholm Limited,
22 LLC?

23 A. No.

24 Q. Either does.your wife?

25 A. No.
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Q. Neither does the trust?
A, No.

Q. Are you currently involved in any other

businesses or entities that we haven't discussed today?

A. Just trying to make CannaVest work.
Q. So the answer is no?
A. Correct. The answer is no. I'm sorry.
Q. That's okay.
Are you involved in any other partnerships?

No.

Are you receiving any pension payments?
No.

Are you contributing to any pensions?

No.
Are you receiving any disability payments?

No.

No.

Who foreclosed on the Laguna property?

b o B I ) ? ©0 ? © ? 10 ?

Mike Shustick. Vestin Mortgage.
Q. Were there any surplus funds after the

foreclosure?

A. No. Well, let's put it this way. I didn't get

any. I have not talked to Shustick since --

Q. Are you no longer on good terms with Mr.

Are you receiving any unemployment payments?

Litigation Services | 800-330-1112
www.litigationservices.com

0650

3053

729



MICHAEL J. MONA, JR. - 06/30/2015

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25
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A. No.
Q. Why's that?
A. Business. Bad business, I guess.
Q. Like what?
A. I believe I'm here because of Mike Shustic
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k, and

that's enough to make me not want to talk with him. If

I was smart, I would have listened to Mr. Soy (ph

spelling) years ago, but I didn't.

Q. Are you an officer of Roen Ventures?

A. No.

Q. Are you a manager of Roen Ventures?

A. Whatever that agreement is that I signed.
don't know if that's manager or consultant. I do

know what the actual definition is, but to what t

document reads, that's what I am.

Q.

A.

Q.

Has the Mona Family Trust ever filed tax r
I believe so, yes.

If you had copies of those, you would have

produced those in this case?

A,

Q
A
Q.
A

Yes.

Okay. Did you file 2014 tax returns?
Yes.

Did you receive a refund?

No. Not yet.

onetic

I
n't

he

eturns?
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When do you expect to receive a refund?
Hopefully.

When?

Oh, I have no idea.

When did you file the 2014 tax returns?

I believe Mr. Wilson filed them April 13th, 14th,

something like that.

Q.

refund

A.

L I A o b= o BN T o .S

.

Q.

A.

Is there a reason you haven't received your
yet?

I have no idea.

Have you asked about it?

Asked about it yesterday.

And?

He'll check on it he said.

What do you intend to do with that money?
Probably give it to Mona Co to pay bills.
What bills?

Everyday living bills, expenses.

Your living expenses?

Whatever expenses that arise.

But you're not going to deposit that into your

personal account?

I don't know what I'm doing with it. My wife

gets half of it obviously. She wants the whele thing,

and I told her no.
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1 Q. So you're going to give half of it to your wife,
2 and the rest is going to go to Mona Co to pay your
3 living expenses?
4 A. I haven't decided vyet.
5 Q. When will you decide?
6 A. I guess when I get the check in my hand.
7 Q. You don't want it to use to pay the judgment in
8 this matter?
9 A. I'd rather use it to survive right now.
10 MR. COFFING: If that's an offer to settle
11 for 55,000, we can talk.
12 MR. EDWARDS: We'll absolutely take the
13 55,000 as partial satisfaction of the judgment.
14 (Exhibit 18 was marked for identification.)
15 BY MR. EDWARDS:
16 Q. Sir, I'm showing you what's been marked as
17 Exhibit 18.
18 Do you recognize this?
19 A. Yes, sir.
20 Q. What is it?
21 A. TIt's the 2014 tax return for my wife and I.
22 Q. And this is what you filed with the IRS?
23 A. This is what Ed Wilson filed, yes.
24 Q. With your permission?
25 A. Correct.
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Q. On the second page, you see the return identifies

that you're entitled to a refund of $55,541?

A. Correct.

Q. Which you haven't received that yet?

A. Correct.

Q. I'm going to direct your attention to page 5 of
Exhibit 18. Under interest and ordinary dividends, do
you see you reported a little over $5,000 from Bank of
George?

A. Correct.

Q. Why are you receiving $5,000 in interest from
Bank of George?

A. That's my wife's bank. I have no idea. I don't
deal with Bank of George.

Q. Why did you receive a little over $15,000 in
interest from Roen Ventures?

A. I have no idea.

Q. In 2014 you don't know why you received that from
Roen Ventures?

A. I'm guessing that was my interest on the 2.6
prior to selling it to Mr. Mackay is what I have to
guess .

Q. Down at the bottom of this page, part three,
foreign accounts and trust.

Do you see where it asks if you've ever had an
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account outside the country in 201472
A. TI'm sorry. Where are you looking at?
Q. Very bottom of page 5.
A. Okay.
Q. It asked if you have any foreign accounts in
2014.

Do you see that?
A. Yes.
Q. Do you see the check next to no for that answer?
A. Yes.
Q. But in actuality, you do have at least one
account?
A. I have that account in Germany.
Q. So this is inaccurate in that respect?
A. Doesn't look like it, no. Obviously Ed Wilson
doesn't know about my 320 Euros sitting there.
Q. Are there any other accounts that Ed Wilson
doesn't know about?
A. No.
Q. Page 9 of this tax return. It shows that you
tock a 500 -- more than a $500,000 loss in 2014.
Where did you lose that money?
A. Probably one of the numerous LLCs that I lost, I
would have to guess. Not guess. It has to be it.

Q. Direct your attention to page 12, please of
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Exhibit 18. Down under part 5 at the very end of the

page.
A,
Q.
A.

Q.

Okay.
Line 43.
Okay.

It says reconciliation for real estate

professionals.

A.

Are you a real estate professional?

Well, if you go based upon all my prior

investments, I have to say no.

Q.
A
Q.
A
estate
BY MR.
19.

Q.
right?

Q.

Do you own any real estate licenses?
No.
Have you ever?
25 years ago I had a -~ 30 years ago I had a real
license I let lapse.

(Exhibit 19 was marked for identification.)
EDWARDS :

So I'm showing you what's been marked as Exhibit

Do you recognize this?
Part of my tax return obviously.

Specifically it's a K-1 from Mona Co Development;

Yes.

If I'm reading this right, it says that Mona
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Family Trust is an owner of Mona Co Development; is that

right?

A. It looks that way, yes.

Q. Is that true that Mona Co is owned at least in
part by Mona Family Trust?

A. That's what this document states.

Q. And I'm asking whether this document is accurate?

A. I probably have to say my accountant knows more
than I do.

Q. 8o you do believe this is accurate that the Mona
Family Trust owns a portion of the Mona Co Development,
LLC?

A. I don't know. Based upon this obviously, vyes.
Which is news to me.

Q. Okay. You thought you were the sole owner of
Mona Co Development, LLC?

A. No. I know my kids have 49 percent. I thought
the 51 percent was owned by myself and my wife. I had
no idea it was Mona Family Trust.

Q. The bottom left-hand corner of the first page of
Exhibit 19, do you see capital contributed during the
year?

A. Okay.

Q. Do you see $402,000 was contributed from the Mona

Family Trust to Mona Co Development in 2014?
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A. No.

Q. You don't see that?

A. I see it, but I know Mona Family Trust did not
give $400,000.

Q. Where did that money come from?

A. I have no idea. Prcbably loans.

Q. Loans from who?

A. Whatever the books say. I don't know. I know
Mona Family Trust did not give $402,000.

Q. Do you think somebody contributed the $402,00 to
Mona Co in 20142

A. I don't know.

Q. What documents would you look at to figure out
who gave Mona Co $402,000 in 20147

A. Probably have to go to my accountant, see what he
has.

Q. You don't have any documents that would reflect
that?

A. He has all this financial information.

Q. You don't have any of the financial information?

A. No.

Q. In response to the judgment debtor examination
order, did you ask your accountant for any documents?

A. No.

Q. Do you believe you should have?
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MR. COFFING: Calls for a legal conclusion

as to what he should have done.

THE WITNESS: A lot of things I should have
done in my life. Probably so.
BY MR. EDWARDS:

Q. Also in that same box, first page of Exhibit 189,
says that there were withdrawals and distributions from
Mona Co Development to the Mona Family Trust in the
amount of $145,147.

Do you see that?

A. Correct.

MR. COFFING: TI'm going to object to the
characterization that was given to the Mona Family
Trust, but that's what the document says. There's
$145,000 in withdrawals and distributions.

THE WITNESS: T would have to say that comes
from bills that were paid through Mona Family Trust that
my accountant put down as withdrawals and distributions.
Again, I'm not an accountant. I'm far from it, but
that's what I would have to guess.

BY MR. EDWARDS:

Q. That -- you lost me there. One more time?

A. Obviously there were bills paid and moneys paid
out -- I don't know -- that totaled this $145,000 that

he classified as personal.
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Q. Bills paid to Mona Co or paid by Mona Co
Development on behalf of the Mona Family Trust?

A. I don't know.

Q. But you were just articulating what you thought
happened. I'm trying to rephrase to make sure I
understand.

A. I don't want to guess. I don't know. I don't
know the situation.

Q. We'd have to look at your accountant's records to
figure that out?

A. Correct.

Q. You're saying the Mona Family Trust did not
receive over $145,000 from Mona Co in 20147?

A. I don't believe so, no.

Q. Let's turn to page 2 of Exhibit 19. You see the
list under nondeductible expenses?

A. Okay.

Q. You see excluded meals and entertainment is the
first category?

A. Okay.

Q. What were these meals and entertainment expenses
for?

A. Probably like it says, entertainment and business
expenses.

Q. For what?
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A. What do you mean for what?

Q. Well, Mona Co hasn't done any business in five
years if not longer. So who are you entertaining? Who
are you taking out to lunch?

A. I don't know what my accountant put this under,
what he totaled to put this here.

Q. Are you entertaining clients on behalf of Mona
Co?

A. I entertain people all the time trying to borrow
money, trying to do deals. That's what I do.

Q. For CamnnaVest?

A. No. For personal, for CannaVest, for whatever
I'm working on.

Q. Are you trying to get loans for Mona Co?

A. Well, I'm trying to live past CannaVest because I
think CannaVest is going to come to an end. So I'm
trying to plan ahead. So I'm trying to, you know, make
a deal with somebody, trying to make a dollar.

Q. What deals are you trying to make?

A. 2Any deal I can get my hands on.

Q. Like what?

A. Real estate deals, any deals.

Q. You're currently working on putting together some
real estate deals?

A. I try to work on anything. I don't have anything
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right now. I couldn't say, yes, I'm working on this

deal. I'm a businessman. I got to make money. I'm
doing whatever it takes to pay the bills.

Q. Okay. Right now you don't have any current
business plans?

A. I have no current bugsiness plans.

Q. But you're trying to make some?

A. Trying to borrow money from CannaVest to keep it
going. That's what I'm focused on.

Q. You're not trying right now to borrow any money
for Mona Co?

A. I borrow money from whoever is going to lend it
to me.

Q. My question is: Are you trying to borrow money
right now for Mona Co?

A. No.

Q. Are you trying to borrow money right now for
yourself?

A. T always try to borrow money for myself.

Q. Is that a yes?

A. Yes.

Q. Who are you trying to borrow money from?

A. People, I guess, that I have done business with
in the past that I've made money for.

Q. Who are you trying to borrow money from?
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A. Nobody specific.

Q. You don't have any plans in place to borrow any
money from anybody?

A. No.

Q. Second category here is employee life insurance.

Do you see that?

A. Yes.

Who are the employees receiving life insurance?

A. Well, until we had health insurance at CannaVest,
which I believe just kicked in maybe six, seven months
ago, it was my son and I.

Q. Life insurance?

A. Oh, no, I'm sorry. Life insurance is mine. I
apologize. Life insurance goes back to that $5 million
term policy that my wife is the beneficiary of. I
apologize.

Q. 8o Mona Co paid a little over $21,000 for your
personal life insurance policy?

A. Mona Co owes me about a million-eight, $2
million. So, yes, they did.

Q. Is that documented anywhere?

A I believe it's on the books at Mona Co.

Q Is there a loan agreement?

A. Nope.
Q

Any document other than the books of Mona Co that
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would document the loan?

A. No.

Q. These loans that you're trying to get for
yourself personally, do you have any intent to pay them
back?

A. I intend to pay everybody back when and if
CannaVest ever takes off. And, you know, I've got about
six months to figure it out. So I'll let you know come
January.

Q. Okay. What happens in January?

A. Well, if I don't make something happen this year
with CannaVest, I don't believe I'll be employed by
CannaVest come January. That means my son will be out
of a job too, I'm sure.

Q. Next line item down on Exhibit 19 under
nondeductible expenses is health insurance.

Do you see that?

A. Correct.

Who is Mona Co paying health insurance for?

A. That was what I was speaking about earlier. I
believe it was for my son and I prior tc us getting
coverage at CannaVest.

Q. Does your wife -- does she have health insurance?

A. She's under my plan.

Q. Next item down is insurance Red Arrow.
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What's that?

A. Obviously Mona Co paid my insurance for Red Arrow
house.

Q. Why did Mona Co pay the insurance for the Red
Arrow house?

A. Probably because it owes me close to a
million-eight, and I paid it through Mona Co.

Q. When you did you loan million-eight to Mona Co?

A. Over the last -- Mona Co was created in 2000.
Probably in the last -- you know, since then. Again, I
don't know if it's as high as a million-eight. I think
that may be a little high. Maybe million-one,
million-two, something like that. I don't know. I'm
probably guessing, and I should not do that.

Q. What did Mona Co do with the million-eight that
you loaned it?
Invested in deals.
Do you know which deals?
No.

Would that be reflected in the books?

» o 2 oo

Probably so.

Q. Or did you loan the 1.8 million to Mona Co so
Mona Co could pay your personal expenses?

A. No. It was business.

Q. All business?
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A. Uh-huh.

Q. Next entry down under nondeductible expenses,
club dues.
Do you see that?
A. Yes.
Where is Mona Co paying for club dues?
A. Again, probably comes off of the money that Mona
Co owes me.
Q. Where is Mona Co paying these club dues to?
This is Red Rock Country Club I'm sure.
Do you have a golf membership?
Yes.

Is it full golf or limited golf?

L= e I S o B

I believe it's limited, and I haven't played in
two years.

Q. Are you an equity member?

A. No.

Q. Next line item down is personal auto, and the one
down after that is personal use of vehicle.

Do you know what those line items are referring

to?

A. No.

Q. Does Mona Co own a vehicle?

A. I believe it used to own a truck or something

awhile ago. I don't know. It does not own a vehicle
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oW, no.

Q. Did it own a vehicle in 2014°%?

A. I don't recall.

Q. What documents could we review to figure out if
it owned a vehicle in 201472

A. Probably the Mona Co documents.

Q. With your accountant?

A. With my accountant.

Q. Last item on the nondeductible expenses on page 2
of Exhibit 19 is utilities for $19,000.

What utilities is this referring to?

A. Probably utilities that were paid out of Mona Co
for the house.

Q. Your personal house?

A. T guess.

Q. Why is Mona Co paying all of these personal
expenses?

A. That's just what I was told to do from my
accountants.

Q. You plan on continuing to pay your personal
expenses through Mona Co?

A. Hopefully not.

Q. What do you hopefully intend to do in the future?

A. Well, I don't know right now. The future is so

far off. I have no idea.

Litigation Services | 800-330-1112 0667

www.litigationservices.com

3070

746



MICHAEL J. MONA, JR. - 06/30/2015

10
11
i2
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

Page 171
Q. I'm sorry. What's that?
A. I have no idea.
Q. Something was so far off?
A. The future is so far off. I have no idea.
MR. COFFING: 1Is now a good time for a
break?

MR. EDWARDS: Sure.
(A break was taken from 1:48 p.m. through
1:53 p.m.)
(Exhibit 20 was marked for identification.)
BY MR. EDWARDS:
Q. Sir, I'm showing you what's been marked as
Exhibit 20.
Do you recognize this document?
A. It's a part of my 2014 tax return.
Q. And a K-1 from M&M Ventures, LLC?
A. Correct.
Q. If I remember your testimony right, M&M does not
have any assets; right?
A. Correct.
Q. You lost them in foreclosure?
A. Correct.
Q. Again, if I'm reading this K-1 correctly, it says
that the Mona Family Trust owns 90 percent of M&aM

Ventures.
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Do you see that?

A. Yes, I do.

Q. Is that consistent with your understanding?

A. You know, my accountant prepared this. I don't
know how he prepared it, but obviously it says it did,
which is news to me.

Q. Before today you didn't know that the Mona Family
Trust owned 90 percent of M&M Ventures, LLC?

A. I did not know that. I thought it was myself.

Q. Who owns the remaining 10 percent of M&M
Ventures, LLC?

A. I would have to say Mike Minetti.

Q. 1Is that consistent with your understanding that
you own 90 percent and he owned 10 percent?

A. I thought it was 50/50, is what I thought, and I
had no idea Mona Family Trust was involved with it. You
know, when you lose as many properties as I have and
gone through the money I have, I guess T don't pay
attention like I should of who loses what. To me it's
all me, whether it's Mona Family Trust, whether it's
personal, whether it's my wife. It's all Mona. So
maybe I was wrong in this. Obviously I am. I do not
prepare these returns. My accountant does. To me a
loss is a loss.

Q. Bottom left-hand corner shows capital contributed
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during the year of Mona Family Trust to M&M Ventures of

over $33,000.
Do you see that?

A. Correct.

Q. Did Mona Family Trust contribute over $33,000 to
M&M Ventures in 20147?

A. I don't believe so, no. I don't recall.

Q. Did anybody contribute $33,000 to M&M Ventures in
20142

A. If anybody did, it would be Mike Minetti.

Q. You didn't contribute $33,000 to M&M Ventures in
20147

A. I don't believe so. This has been a loser for
three years, two years. I don't know why I would
contribute $33,000 to a project that was a loser three
years ago.

Q. And what records would I use to confirm who
contributed more than $33,000 to M&M Ventures in 20147?

A. Obviously my accountant's.

Q. But you didn't ask the accountant for his
documents?

A. No.

(Exhibit 21 was marked for identification.)

BY MR. EDWARDS:

Q. I'm showing you what's been marked as Exhibit 21.
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Do you recognize this document?

A. 2000 Mona Co Development return.

Q. 20142

A. I'm sorry. 2014, yeah.

Q. Did you review this tax return before?

A. I don't review tax returns at all, no.

Q. Does your accountant ask you to review tax
returns?

A. Obviously he does.

Q. You don't listen to him?

A. Obviously not in this case.

Q. So this is the first time you're seeing the 2014

tax returns for Mona Co development?

A.

I obviously saw it prior to him submitting it I

would guess.

Q.

A.

Q.

But you don't recall?
I don't recall.

On this first page under income, line 8, it says

2014 income for Mona Co was a little over $39,000.

oo

years?

Do you see that?

That's what it says.

Where did Mona Co earn that income from?
I have no idea.

Because it hasn't been operated for five plus
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A. Correct.
Q. Yet it has substantial deductioms.
Do you see that?

A. Correct.

Q. Do you know why it has substantial deductions?

A. No, I don't.

Q. I'm going to direct your attention to Exhibit 21.
If you look at the bottom right-hand corner, it's page
337.

A. Page 3377

Q. Yeah.

Do you see the list of expenses under other

deductions?

A. Yes.

Q. Accounting fees for 13,000. What's that for?

A. I would have to guess accounting.

Q. To Mr. Wilson?

A. Correct.

Q. Do you pay him over $13,000 just for the Mona Co

tax returns or for other tax returns?

Al
Q.
A.

Q.

I have no idea.
Does Mona Co do any advertising?
No.

Why is Mona Co deducting over almost $14,000 for

advertising in 201472
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A. I don't know how Mr. Wilson categorized that.

Q. The large line item here is legal fees for over
$113,000.
Do you see that?
A. Yes, I do.
Q. Why is Mona Co incurring over $100,000 for legal
fees in 20147
A. Probably paying my attorney fees.
Q. Who is Mona Co's -- our attormney's fees? Your
attorney fees? Let's clarify that omne.
Whose attorney fees?
A. Probably my attorney fees.
Q. Your personal attorney's fees?
A. Again, I'd be guessing, so I can't answer that
question. Attorney fees.
Q. To Mr. Coffing?
A. I have no idea.

Q. We would need to look at your accounting records

for that?

A Okay.

Q. 1Is that right?

A Correct.

Q. One of the items is outside services for a little
over $14,000.

Do you know what that is?
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No, I don't.

. You have a telephone bill for over $21,000?
That's probably cell phones I'm guessing.

. Cell phones for who?

» o > oo >

Probably for my family, for myself. I'm guessing
here. I should not guess. This is prepared by my
accountant, and I don't want to do any more guessing.

Q. You have over $53,000 in travel deductions in
2014 for Mona Co.

What's that for?

A. Travel, I guess.

Q. Where's Mona Co traveling to?
A. Again, my accountant prepared these. I don't
know how he categorized them. I had no input on this.
Q. But you didn't travel anywhere for Mona Co in
2014, did you?

A. Depends how he categorized it, what he considers
business or not.

Q. I'm asking you. You didn't travel anywhere in
2014 for Mona Co; correct?

A. I traveled. I don't know how he categorized it.
I don't know why he would categorize it or how he
categorized it.

Q. Did you have any trips this past year as it

relates to Mona Co?

Litigation Services | 800-330-1112 0674

www.litigationservices.com

3077

753



MICHAEL J. MONA, JR. - 06/30/2015

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

Page 178

A. I don't know.

Q. What does that mean?

A. I don't know how he categorized it.

Q. Did you fly anywhere in 2014 to address the
business of Mona Co?

A. Mona Co's business is my business. Wherever I
go, it's business. So I don't know how he categorized
that again.

Q. So you and Mona Co are interchangeable?

A. I didn't say that.
Q. Okay.
A. T don't know how -- this is prepared by Ed

Wilson. You'd have to go through his records to see how

that is. I have no idea how he categorized it.

Q. Let's go back to your other testimony. Mona Co
hasn't done any business in five plus years?

A. Correct. That doesn't mean that I don't try to
generate business. That doesn't mean it's dead. That
does not mean I don't go out and try to do business
every day. I'm sitting here. I'm not dead. I try to
do business. So how he categorized it is how he
categorized it.

Q. Did you travel anywhere in 2014 and attempt to
generate business for Mona Co?

A. I travel all over to generate business period.
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How he categorized it, I have no idea.

Q. Did you travel anywhere in 2014 to generate
business for Mona Co?

MR. COFFING: Asked and answered. 1It's the
third time.

THE WITNESS: I'm not answering anymore. I
answered twice. I don't know how my accountant prepared
this.

BY MR. EDWARDS:

Q. I'm not asking hoﬁ your accountant prepared it.
I'm asking if you traveled in 2014 to conduct business
for Mona Co?

A. Whenever I travel, I conduct business. I don't
care where it's at. If it's for Mona Co, if it's for
CannaVest, or whatever, I travel for business, period.
So how my accountant categorized that, I don't know.

Q. Again, I'm not asking you how your accountant
categorized it. I'm asking you whether you traveled in
2014 to conduct business for Mona Co?

MR. COFFING: Asked and answered.

THE WITNESS: Whenever I travel, I do
business wherever I'm at. How my accountant categorized
that, I don't know.

BY MR. EDWARDS:

Q. Have you done any business in Mona Co in 2014°?
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A. Successful business, no.

Q. Have you had any unsuccessful business for Mona
Co in 20147

A. I always try to cut deals with Mona Co and
everything else I'm working on. So there were no deals
that were done in 2014, no.

Q. What deals did you attempt to cut with Mona Co in
20147

A. Always looking for a deal.

Q. I hear you.

What deals did you attempt to cut for Mona Co in

20147

A. I can't recall a specific deal.

Q. Can you recall any deal?

A. No.

Q. Were there any potential deals you were trying to
work for Mcona Co in 20147?

A. Wherever I go, I try to do a deal. Can I
pinpoint one? No.

Q. Do you have any records related to any potential
deals on behalf of Mona Co in 20147?

A. Obviously my accountant would have those.

Q. Same Exhibit 21, the bottom right-hand cormer,
page 339. Under other current liabilities, dc you see

$55,000 due to affiliate?
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1 A. Correct.
2 Q. Who's the affiliate?
3 A. I don't know.
4 Q. No idea?
5 A. No idea.
6 Q. Only your accountant would know?
7 A. My accountant would know.
8 Q. And we'd have to review his records to determine
9 that?
10 A. Correct.
11 Q. Does the debt that Mona Co owes to you, is that
12 reflected anywhere on the tax return?
13 A. I don't know. Again, that's a question to my
14 accountant.
15 Q. Do you agree to provide your accountant's records
16 as part of a supplemental production?
17 MR. COFFING: He's testified to what he can
18 say. We will have an answer for you.
19 BY MR. EDWARDS:
20 Q. Do you have any collection of books?
21 A. No.
22 Q. A library?
23 A. At the house, ves.
24 Q. Do you have books on the shelves?
25 A. I just -- yeah, kid's school books, miscellaneocus
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Trustee of the Mona Family Trust Dated
February 12, 2002, and Rhonda Mona as
Trustee of the Mona Family trust Dated
February 12, 2002

Exhibit | Document Description
1 Definitions Volume 1
Bates Nos. 173—-179
Order Regarding Motion for Protective Order on Order Volume 1
Shortening Time (filed 06/17/15) Bates Nos. 180182
Notice of Entry of Order Regarding Motion for Protective Volume 1
Order on Order Shortening Time (filed 06/17/15) Bates Nos. 183-187
Ex Parte Application for Order to Show Cause why Volume 1
Accounts of Rhonda Mona Should not be Subject to Bates Nos. 188-204
Execution and Why the Court Should Not Find the Monas in
Contempt (filed 06/29/15)
Exhibits to Ex Parte Application for Order to
Show Cause why Accounts of Rhonda Mona
Should not be Subject to Execution and Why the
Court Should Not Find the Monas in Contempt
Exhibit | Document Description
1 Post-Marital Property Settlement Agreement Volume 1
Bates Nos. 205-217
2 Judgment Debtor Examination of Michael J. Mona | Volume 1
Bates Nos. 218223
3 Rough Draft Transcript of Deposition of Rhonda Volume 1
H. Mona Bates Nos. 224-233
4 Judgment and Findings of Fact and Conclusions of | Volume 2
Law Bates Nos. 234-254
Order to Show Cause Why Accounts of Rhonda Mona Volume 2
should not be Subject to Execution and Why the Court Bates Nos. 255-257

Should Not Find the Monas in Contempt (filed 06/30/15)




Notice of Entry of Order to Show Cause Why Accounts of | Volume 2
Rhonda Mona Should not be Subject to Execution and Why | Bates Nos. 258-263
the Court Should Not Find the Monas in Contempt (filed
06/30/15)
Response to Order to Show Cause Why Accounts of Rhonda | Volume 2
Mona should not be Subject to Execution and Why the Court | Bates Nos. 264-278
Should Not Find the Monas in Contempt (filed 07/07/15)
Exhibits to Response to Order to Show Cause
Why Accounts of Rhonda Mona should not be
Subject to Execution and Why the Court
Should Not Find the Monas in Contempt
Exhibit | Document Description
A Findings of Fact and Conclusions of law (filed Volume 2
03/06/12 in Superior Court of California Bates Nos. 279-295
Riverside)
B Post-Marital Property Settlement Agreement Volume 2
Bates Nos. 296-308
C Declaration of Mike Mona in Support of Response | Volume 2
to Order to Show Cause Bates Nos. 309-310
Supplement to Response to Order to Show Cause Why Volume 2
Accounts of Rhonda Mona should not be Subject to Bates Nos. 311-316
Execution and Why the Court Should Not Find the Monas in
Contempt (filed 07/08/15)
Declaration in Support of Request for Contempt (filed Volume 2
07/08/15) Bates Nos. 317-324
Order Regarding Order to Show Cause Why Accounts of Volume 2
Rhonda Mona should not be Subject to Execution and Why | Bates Nos. 325-335
the Court Should Not Find the Monas in Contempt (filed
07/15/15)
Notice of Entry of Order to Show Cause Why Accounts of | Volume 2
Rhonda Mona should not be Subject to Execution and Why | Bates Nos. 336-349
the Court Should Not Find the Monas in Contempt (filed
07/16/15)
Motion to Compel Application of Particular Assets Toward | Volume 2
Satisfaction of Judgment (filed 07/16/15) Bates Nos. 350-360




Exhibits to Motion to Compel Application of
Particular Assets Toward Satisfaction of
Judgment

Exhibit | Document Description
1 Judgment Debtor Examination of Michael J. Volume 2
Mona, Jr. Bates Nos. 361-370
2 Deposition of Rhonda Mona Volume 2
Bates Nos. 371-376
Plaintiff’s Memorandum of Fees and Costs Associated with | Volume 2
Order to Show Cause Why Accounts of Rhonda Mona Bates Nos. 377-380
should Not be Subject to Execution and Why the Court
Should Not Find Monas in Contempt (filed 07/20/15)
Motion on an Order Shortening Time for Bond Pending Volume 2
Appeal (filed 09/09/15) Bates Nos. 381-391
Exhibits to Motion on an Order Shortening
Time for Bond Pending Appeal
Exhibit | Document Description
1 Order (filed 08-31-15) Volume 2
Bates Nos. 392-395
2 Judgment (filed 04/27/12 in the Superior Court of | Volume 2
California Riverside Bates Nos. 396414
3 Deed of Trust Volume 2
Bates Nos. 415-422
4 Deed of Trust with Assignment of Rents Volume 2
Bates Nos. 423430
Opposition to Motion on an Order Shortening Time for Volume 2
Bond Pending Appeal (filed 09/16/15) Bates Nos. 431439
Exhibits to Opposition to Motion on an Order
Shortening Time for Bond Pending Appeal
Exhibit | Document Description
A Order (filed 08/31/15) Volume 2
Bates Nos. 440—443
B Transcript of Proceedings of July 9, 2015 Hearing | Volume 2
(filed 07/14/15) Bates Nos. 444447
C Third Amended Complaint (filed 07/15/14) Volume 2

Bates Nos.

448459




Exhibits to Opposition to Motion on an Order
Shortening Time for Bond Pending Appeal

(cont.)
D Complaint (filed 09/11/15) Volume 2
Bates Nos. 460473
E Far West’s Motion to Intervene, for a finding and | Volume 3
Order that the Post-Marital Agreement is void Bates Nos. 474-517
Based on the Principles of Res Judicata and Issue
Preclusion, and that the Plaintiff and Defendant are
Jointly Liable for the Judgment Held by Intervenor
(filed 09/04/15)
Second Motion to Compel Application of Particular Assets | Volume 3
Towards Satisfaction of Judgment (filed 10/12/15) Bates Nos. 518-524
Exhibits to Second Motion to Compel
Application of Particular Assets Towards
Satisfaction of Judgment
Exhibit | Document Description
1 Judgment Debtor Examination of Michael J. Mona, | Volume 3
Jr Bates Nos. 525-531

2 Order Granting Temporary Stay (filed 07/20/15) Volume 3
Bates Nos. 532534

3 Order (filed 08/31/15) Volume 3
Bates Nos. 535-538

4 Decree of Divorce (filed 07/23/15) Volume 3
Bates Nos. 539-545

Order Regarding Motion on an Order Shortening time for Volume 3
Bond Pending Appeal (filed 10/16/15) Bates Nos. 546-553

Plaintiff Far West Industries’ Motion for Determination of Volume 3
Priority of Garnishment (filed 02/16/16) Bates Nos. 554-563

Exhibits to Plaintiff Far West Industries’
Motion for Determination of Priority of
Garnishment

Exhibit | Document Description

1 Judgment (filed 04/27/12 in the Superior Court of | Volume 3
the State of California, Riverside) Bates Nos. 564567




Exhibits to Plaintiff Far West Industries’
Motion for Determination of Priority of
Garnishment (cont.)

2 Case Summary Volume 3
Bates Nos. 568-570
3 Writ of Execution Volume 3
Bates Nos. 571-575
4 Instructions to the Sheriff/Constable-Clark County | Volume 3
Bates Nos. 576589
5 Writ of Garnishment Volume 3
Bates Nos. 590-598
6 Email Chain between Tom Edward and Tye Volume 3
Hanseen Bates Nos. 599-602
7 Decree of Divorce (filed 07/23/2015) Volume 3
Bates Nos. 603—609
Plaintiff Far West Industries’ Motion: (1) For Default Volume 3
Judgment Against Roen Ventures, LLC for Untimely Bates Nos. 610-622
Answers to Writ of Garnishment and Interrogatories; and (2)
to Compel Roen Ventures, LLC’s Turnover of Payment
Made to, on Behalf of, or for the Benefit of Michael J.
Mona, Jr. (filed 02/16/16)
Exhibits to Plaintiff Far West Industries’
Motion: (1) For Default Judgment Against Roen
Ventures, LLC for Untimely Answers to Writ of
Garnishment and Interrogatories; and (2) to
Compel Roen Ventures, LLC’s Turnover of
Payment Made to, on Behalf of, or for the
Benefit of Michael J. Mona, Jr.
Exhibit | Document Description
1 Judgment (filed 04/27/12 in the Superior Court of | Volume 3
the State of California, Riverside) Bates Nos. 623—-626
2 Management Agreement Volume 3
Bates Nos. 627-630
3 Management Agreement Volume 3
Bates Nos. 631-635
4 Writ of Execution Volume 3
Bates Nos. 636—641
5 Instructions to the Sheriff/Constable-Clark County | Volume 3

Bates Nos.

642-656




Exhibits to Plaintiff Far West Industries’
Motion: (1) For Default Judgment Against Roen
Ventures, LLC for Untimely Answers to Writ of
Garnishment and Interrogatories; and (2) to
Compel Roen Ventures, LLLC’s Turnover of
Payment Made to, on Behalf of, or for the
Benefit of Michael J. Mona, Jr. (cont.)

6 Writ of Garnishment Volume 3
Bates Nos. 657-676
Plaintiff Far West Industries” Motion to Reduce Sanctions Volume 3
Order to Judgment (filed 02/19/16) Bates Nos. 677-679
Appendix of Exhibits to Plaintiff Far West Industries’
Motion to Reduce Sanctions Order to Judgment (filed
02/19/16)
Exhibits to Appendix of Exhibits to Plaintiff Far
West Industries’ Motion to Reduce Sanctions
Order to Judgment
Exhibit | Document Description

1 Order Regarding Order to Show Cause Why Volume 3
Accounts of Rhonda Mona Should Not Be Subject | Bates Nos. 680—691
to Execution and Why the Court Should Not Find
Monas in Contempt (filed 07/15/15) (cont. in Vol.

4)

2 Plaintiff's Memorandum of Fees and Costs Volume 3
Associated With Order to Show Cause Why Bates Nos. 692696
Accounts of Rhonda Mona Should Not be Subject
to Execution and Why the Court Should Not Find
Monas in Contempt (filed 07/20/15)

3 Transcript of Show Cause Hearing: Why Accounts | Volume 4
Of Rhonda Mona Should Not Be Subject To Bates Nos. 697-807
Execution And Why The Court Should Not Find
Monas In Contempt (filed 07/14/15)

4 Petition for Writ of Mandamus or Prohibition (filed | Volume 4
07/17/15) Bates Nos. 808—849

5 : Volume 4
Order Granting Temporary Stay (filed 07/20/15) Bates Nos. 850852

6 Volume 4

Order (filed 10/16/15)

Bates Nos

. 853-856




Exhibits to Appendix of Exhibits to Plaintiff Far
West Industries’ Motion to Reduce Sanctions
Order to Judgment (cont.)

7 . : Volume 4
Order Denying Motion (filed 11/19/15) Bates Nos. 857-860
8 Volume 4
Motion to Dismiss (filed December 4, 2015) Bates Nos. 861941
Volume 5
Bates Nos. 942957
9 Defendant Michael J. Mona, Jr.’s Reply in Support |Volume 5
of Motion to Dismiss (filed 01/26/16) Bates Nos. 958978
Amended Appendix of Exhibits to Plaintiff Far West Volume 5
Industries’ Motion to Reduce Sanctions Order to Judgment |Bates Nos. 979-981
(filed 02/22/16)
Exhibits to Amended Appendix of Exhibits to
Plaintiff Far West Industries’ Motion to Reduce
Sanctions Order to Judgment
Exhibit | Document Description
4 Petition for Writ of Mandamus or Prohibition (filed |Volume 5
07/17/15) Bates Nos. 982-1023
Mona’s Opposition to Far West’s Motion for Determination |Volume 5
of Priority of Garnishment and Countermotion to Discharge |Bates Nos. 1024-1053
Garnishment and for Return of Proceeds (filed 03/04/16)
Exhibits to Mona’s Opposition to Far West’s
Motion for Determination of Priority of
Garnishment and Countermotion to Discharge
Garnishment and for Return of Proceeds
Exhibit | Document Description
A Writ of Garnishment Volume 5
Bates Nos. 1054-1060
Third Party Roen Ventures, LLCs’ Opposition to Motion: Volume 5
(1) For Default Judgment Against Roen Ventures, LLC for |Bates Nos. 1061-1080

Untimely Answers to Writ of Garnishment and
Interrogatories; and (2) to Compel Roen Ventures, LLC’s
Turnover of Payment Made to, on Behalf of, or for the
Benefit of Michael J. Mona, Jr.; and Countermotion for
Attorney’s Fees and Costs (filed 03/04/16)




Exhibits to Third Party Roen Ventures, LLCs’
Opposition to Motion: (1) For Default
Judgment Against Roen Ventures, LLC for
Untimely Answers to Writ of Garnishment and
Interrogatories; and (2) to Compel Roen
Ventures, LLC’s Turnover of Payment Made
to, on Behalf of, or for the Benefit of Michael J.
Mona, Jr.; and Countermotion for Attorney’s
Fees and Costs

Exhibit | Document Description
1 Declaration of Bart Mackay in Support of Volume 5
Opposition to Plaintiff Far West Industries’ Bates Nos. 1081-1090
Motion: (1) for Default Judgment Against Roen
Ventures, etc.
2 Declaration of Dylan Ciciliano in Support of Volume 5
Opposition to Plaintiff Far West Industries’ Bates Nos. 1091-1102
Motion: (1) for Default Judgment Against Roen
Ventures, etc.
3 Complaint (filed 02/07/14) Volume 5
Bates Nos. 1103—-1110
4 Motion to Enforce Settlement Agreement (filed  |Volume 5
11/10/15) Bates Nos. 1111-1144
5 Notice of Entry of Order (01/29/16) Volume 5
Bates Nos. 1145-1151
6 Motion to Dismiss the Roen Defendants with Volume 5
Prejudice (filed 03/03/16) Bates Nos. 1152-1171
7 Writ of Garnishment Volume 5
Bates Nos. 1172—-1179
8 Management Agreement Volume 5
Bates Nos. 1180-1184
Mike Mona’s Opposition to Motion to Reduce Sanctions Volume 6
Order to Judgment (filed 03/07/16) Bates Nos. 1185-1192
Non—Party Rhonda Mona’s Opposition to Plaintiff Far West |Volume 6
Industries’ Motion to Reduce Sanctions Order to Judgment |Bates Nos. 1193-1200

(filed 03/07/16)




Exhibits to Non-Party Rhonda Mona’s
Opposition to Plaintiff Far West Industries’
Motion to Reduce Sanctions Order to
Judgment

Exhibit | Document Description
A Defendant’s Opposition to Countermotion for Volume 6
Summary Judgment (filed 01/19/16) Bates Nos. 1201-1223
B Order Regarding Plaintiff Far West Industries’ Volume 6
Countermotion for Summary Judgment Bates Nos. 1224-1227
C Petition for Writ of Mandamus or Prohibition Volume 6
(filed 07/17/15) Bates Nos. 1228—-1269
Plaintiff Far West Industries’ Reply to Mona’s Opposition to |Volume 6
Far West’s Motion for Determination of Priority of Bates Nos. 1270-1282
Garnishment and Opposition to Countermotion to Discharge
Garnishment and for Return of Proceeds (filed 03/14/16)
Exhibits to Plaintiff Far West Industries’
Reply to Mona’s Opposition to Far West’s
Motion for Determination of Priority of
Garnishment and Opposition to
Countermotion to Discharge Garnishment and
for Return of Proceeds
Exhibit | Document Description
8 Writ of Garnishment Volume 6
Bates Nos. 1283-1289
9 Judgment Debtor Examination of Michael J. Volume 6
Mona, Jr. Bates Nos. 1290-1294
10 Deposition of Rhonda Mona Volume 6
Bates Nos. 1295-1298
11 Checks Volume 6
Bates Nos. 1299-1302
Plaintiff Far West Industries’ Reply in Support of Motion to |Volume 6
Reduce Sanctions Order to Judgment (filed 03/14/16) Bates Nos. 1303-1309
Appendix of Exhibits to Plaintiff Far West Industries’ Reply |Volume 6
in Support of Motion to Reduce Sanctions Order to Bates Nos. 1310-1311

Judgment (filed 03/14/16)




Exhibits to Appendix of Exhibits to Plaintiff
Far West Industries’ Reply in Support of
Motion to Reduce Sanctions Order to
Judgment

Exhibit | Document Description

11 Supplemental Appendix to Real Party In Interest’s

Answering Brief

Volume 6

Bates Nos. 1312-1424
Volume 7

Bates Nos. 1425-1664
Volume 8

Bates Nos. 1665—-1890
Volume 9

Bates Nos. 1891-2127
Volume 10

Bates Nos. 2128-2312

Plaintiff Far West Industries’ Reply to Roen Venture LLC’s
Opposition to Motion: (1) For Default Judgment Against
Roen Ventures, LLC for Untimely Answers to Writ of
Garnishment and Interrogatories; and (2) to Compel Roen
Ventures, LLC’s Turnover of Payment Made to, on Behalf
of, or for the Benefit of Michael J. Mona, Jr., and Opposition
to Countermotion for Attorney’s Fees and Costs (filed
03/14/16)

Volume 10
Bates Nos. 2313-2322

Amended Appendix of Exhibits to Plaintiff Far West
Industries’ Reply in Support of Motion to Reduce Sanctions
Order to Judgment (filed 03/15/16)

Volume 10
Bates Nos. 2323-2325

Exhibits to Amended Appendix of Exhibits to
Plaintiff Far West Industries’ Reply in Support
of Motion to Reduce Sanctions Order to
Judgment

Exhibit | Document Description

10 | Real Party in Interest’s Answering Brief

Volume 10
Bates Nos. 2326-2367
Volume 11
Bates Nos. 2368-2385




Exhibits to Amended Appendix of Exhibits to
Plaintiff Far West Industries’ Reply in Support
of Motion to Reduce Sanctions Order to
Judgment (cont.)

11

Supplemental Appendix to Real Party in Interest’s
Answering Brief

Volume 11
Bates Nos. 23862607
Volume 12
Bates Nos. 2608—-2836
Volume 13
Bates Nos. 2837-3081
Volume 14
Bates Nos. 3082-3138

Mona’s Reply in Support of Countermotion to Discharge
Garnishment and for Return of Proceeds (filed 03/23/16)

Volume 14
Bates Nos. 3139-3154

Errata to Non-Party Rhonda Mona’s Opposition to Plaintiff
Far West Industries’ Motion to Reduce Sanctions Order to
Judgment (filed 03/29/16)

Volume 14
Bates Nos. 3155-3156

Non—Party Rhonda Mona’s Supplemental Briefing
Following Recent Oral Argument Concerning Plaintiff Far
West Industries’ Motion to Reduce Sanctions Order to
Judgment (filed 04/22/16)

Volume 14
Bates Nos. 3157-3172

Exhibits to Non-Party Rhonda Mona’s
Supplemental Briefing Following Recent Oral
Argument Concerning Plaintiff Far West
Industries’ Motion to Reduce Sanctions Order
to Judgment

Exhibit | Document Description
A Defendant’s Opposition to Countermotion for Volume 14
Summary Judgment (filed 01/19/16) Bates Nos. 3173-3193
B Defendants Rhonda Helen Mona, Michael Mona II, |Volume 14
and Lundene Enterprises, LLC’s Reply to Bates Nos. 3194-3210
Plaintiff’s Opposition to Motion to Dismiss (filed
01/26/16)
C Transcript of Proceedings: Plaintiff Far West Volume 14
Industries’ Opposition to Defendants’ Motion to Bates Nos. 3211-3279
Dismiss and Countermotion for Summary
Judgment (filed 04/06/26)
D Decree of Divorce (filed 07/23/15) Volume 14

Bates Nos. 3280-3286




Plaintiff Far West Industries’ Supplemental Brief Regarding
Motion to Reduce Sanctions Order to Judgment (filed
04/22/16)

Volume 14
Bates Nos. 3287-3298

Exhibits to Plaintiff Far West Industries’
Supplemental Brief Regarding Motion to
Reduce Sanctions Order to Judgment

Exhibit | Document Description
12 Writ of Garnishment-Bank of George Volume 14
Bates Nos. 3299-3305
13 Writ of Garnishment-Bank of Nevada Volume 14
Bates Nos. 33063313
14 Mona’s Redacted Bank Records Volume 14
Bates Nos. 3314-3327
Supplemental Brief Regarding Judicial Estoppel and Volume 15

Reducing the Sanction Order to Judgment (filed 04/23/16)

Bates Nos. 3328-3346

Order Regarding Plaintiff Far West Industries’ Motion: (1)
For Default Judgment Against Roen Ventures, LLC for
Untimely Answers to Writ of Garnishment Interrogatories;
and (2) to compel Roen Ventures, LLC’s Turnover of
Payments Made to, on Behalf of, or for the Benefit of
Michael J. Mona, Jr. (filed 04/28/16)

Volume 15
Bates Nos. 3347-3350

Order Regarding Plaintiff Far West Industries’ Motion for
Determination of Priority of Garnishment and Defendant

Michael J. Mona’s Countermotion to Discharge
Garnishment and for Return of Proceeds (filed 06/21/16)

Volume 15
Bates Nos. 3351-3356

Notice of Entry of Order Regarding Plaintiff Far West
Industries” Motion for Determination of Priority of
Garnishment and Defendant Michael J. Mona’s

Countermotion to Discharge Garnishment and for Return of
Proceeds (filed 06/21/16)

Volume 15
Bates Nos. 3357-3365

Notice of Entry of Order Shortening Time and Notice of
Hearing (filed 07/07/16)

Volume 15
Bates Nos. 33663372

Joint Case Appeal Statement (filed 07/14/16)

Volume 15
Bates Nos. 3373-3378




Joint Notice of Appeal (filed 07/15/16)

Volume 15
Bates Nos. 3379-3397

Claim of Exemption (filed 07/15/16)

Volume 15
Bates Nos. 3398-3400

Plaintiff’s Far West Industries’ Objection to Claim of

Exception from Execution on an Order Shortening Time
(filed 07/21/16)

Volume 15
Bates Nos. 3401-3411

Exhibits to Plaintiff’s Far West Industries’
Objection to Claim of Exception from Execution
on an Order Shortening Time

Exhibit

Document Description

1 Writ of Garnishment-Michael Mona Volume 15
Bates Nos. 3412-3416

2 Writ of Execution Volume 15
Bates Nos. 3417-3421

Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Support of Claim |[Volume 15

of Exemption and Discharge (filed 07/29/16)

Bates Nos. 3422-3452

Exhibits to Memorandum of Points and
Authorities in Support of Claim of Exemption
and Discharge

Exhibit | Document Description
A Legislative History related to 120 day expiration Volume 15
period Bates Nos. 3453-3501
B Notice of Entry of Decree of Divorce Volume 15
Bates Nos. 3502-3510
C Plaintiff’s Opposition to Far West’s Motion to Volume 15

Intervene for a Finding and Order that the Post-
Marital Agreement is Void Based on the Principles
of Res Judicata and Issue Preclusion, and that the
Plaintiff and Defendant are Jointly Liable for the
Judgment Held by Intervenor and Plaintiff’s
Countermotion for Far West to Pay Plaintiff’s
Attorneys Fees and Costs Incurred Pursuant to
NRS 12.130(1)(d)

Bates Nos. 3511-3524




Exhibits to Memorandum of Points and
Authorities in Support of Claim of Exemption
and Discharge (cont.)

Claim of Exemption from Execution (filed 08/09/16)

D Defendant Michael Mona’s Joinder to Plaintiff’s Volume 15
Opposition to Far West’s Motion to Intervene for a |Bates Nos. 3525-3528
Finding and Order that the Post-Marital Agreement
is Void Based on the Principles of Res Judicata and
Issue Preclusion, and that the Plaintiff and
Defendant are Jointly Liable for the Judgment Held
by Intervenor and Plaintiff’s Countermotion for Far
West to Pay Plaintiff’s Attorneys Fees and Costs
Incurred Pursuant to NRS 12.130(1)(d) (filed
09/29/15)

E Notice of Entry of Order (filed 12/01/15) Volume 15

Bates Nos. 3529-3533

F Writ of Garnishment-Michael Mona Volume 15

Bates Nos. 3534-3535

G Constable’s return of Notice of Execution after Volume 15
Judgment and Writ of Execution to Michael Mona |Bates Nos. 3536-3545

H Writ of Garnishment- Michael Mona Volume 15

Bates Nos. 35463556

I Claim of Exemption (filed 07/15/16) Volume 15

Bates Nos. 3557-3560

J Mona’s Opposition to Far West’s Motion for Volume 16
Determination of Priority of Garnishment and Bates Nos. 3561-3598
Countermotion to Discharge Garnishment and for
Return of Proceeds (filed 03/04/16)

K Mona’s Reply in Support of Countermotion to Volume 16
Discharge Garnishment and for Return of Proceeds |Bates Nos. 3599-3614
(filed 03/23/16)

L NRS 21.112 Volume 16

Bates Nos. 3615-3616

M Affidavit of Claiming Exempt Property form Volume 16

Bates Nos. 3617-3618
Order Sustaining Plaintiff Far West Industries’ Objection to |Volume 16

Bates Nos. 3619-3621

Memorandum of Points and authorizes in Support of Claim
of Exemption and Motion to Discharge Garnishment (filed
11/10/16)

Volume 16
Bates Nos. 3622-3659




Appendix of Exhibits Attached to Memorandum of Points
and Authorities in Support of Claim of Exemption and
Motion for Discharge of Garnishment (filed 11/10/16)

Volume 16
Bates Nos. 3660-3662

Exhibits to Appendix of Exhibits Attached to
Memorandum of Points and Authorities in
Support of Claim of Exemption and Motion for
Discharge of Garnishment

Exhibit

Document Description

A Nevada Assembly Bill 247, Chapter 338, Page 699 |Volume 16
(1989) Bates Nos. 3663-3711

B Decree of Divorce dated July 23, 2015 Volume 16
Bates Nos. 3712-3718

C Rhonda’s Opposition to Motion to Intervene dated |Volume 16
September 28, 2015 Bates Nos. 3719-3731

D Mona’s September 29, 2015 Joinder to Rhonda’s  |Volume 16
Opposition Bates Nos. 3732-3735

E November 25, 2015 Order Denying Intervention Volume 16
and awarding fees and costs Bates Nos. 37363738

F Volume 16
Writ of Garnishment expiring April 29, 2016 Bates Nos. 3739-3740

G Volume 16
Writ of Garnishment served July 1, 2016 Bates Nos. 3741-3748

H July 5, 2016 correspondence from Constable with  |Volume 16
Notice and Writ of Execution Bates Nos. 3749-3758

I Writ of Execution and Writ of Garnishment served |Volume 16
October 31, 2016 Bates Nos. 3759-3769

J Claim of Exemption forms from Clark County and |Volume 16
the Self-Help Center Bates Nos. 3770-3777

K Volume 16
NRS 21.075 Bates Nos. 3778-3780

L Volume 16
NRS 20.076 Bates Nos. 3781-3782

M Volume 16
NRS 21.090 Bates Nos. 3783-3785

N Volume 16
NRS 21.112 Bates Nos. 3786—3787

O Volume 16
NRS 31.200 Bates Nos. 3788—-3789

P Volume 16

NRS 31.249

Bates Nos. 3790-3791




Exhibits to Appendix of Exhibits Attached to
Memorandum of Points and Authorities in
Support of Claim of Exemption and Motion for
Discharge of Garnishment (cont.)

Q Volume 16
NRS 31.260 Bates Nos. 3792-3793

R Volume 16
NRS 31.270 Bates Nos. 3794-3795

S Volume 16
NRS 31.295 Bates Nos. 3796-3797

T Volume 16
NRS 31.296 Bates Nos. 3798-3799

U Volume 16
EDCR 2.20 Bates Nos. 3800-3801

Claim of Exemption from Execution (filed 11/10/16) Volume 17

Bates Nos. 3802-3985

Far West Industries’ Objection to Claim of Exemption from
Execution on an Order shortening Time and Motion for
Attorney Fees and Costs Pursuant to NRS 18.010(2)(b)
(filed 11/21/16)

Volume 17
Bates Nos. 39864002

Exhibits to Far West Industries’ Objection to
Claim of Exemption from Execution on an

Order shortening Time and Motion for Attorney
Fees and Costs Pursuant to NRS 18.010(2)(b)

Exhibit

Document Description

1 Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law (filed Volume 17
03/06/12 Superior Court of California, County of  |Bates Nos. 40034019
Riverside
2 Order Regarding Plaintiff Far West Industries’ Volume 17
Motion for Determination of Priority of Bates Nos. 4020-4026
Garnishment and Defendant Michael J. Mona’s
Countermotion to Discharge Garnishment and for
Return of Proceeds (filed 06/21/16)
3 Writ of Execution Volume 17
Bates Nos. 4027-4035
4 Documents from the Office of the Ex—Officio Volume 17
Constable Bates Nos. 4036—4039
Affidavit of Service upon CV Sciences, Inc. FKA Cannavest |Volume 17

Corp. (filed 11/23/16)

Bates Nos. 4040-4041




Order Continuing Hearing re Far West’s Objection to Claim
of Exemption from Execution on an Order Shortening Time
(filed 12/06/16)

Volume 17
Bates Nos. 40424043

Notice of Entry of Order Continuing Hearing on Objection
to Claim of Exemption (filed 12/07/16)

Volume 18
Bates Nos. 40444048

Opposition to Plaintiff’s Motion for Attorney Fees and Costs |Volume 18
Pursuant to NRS 18.010(2)(b) (filed 12/08/16) Bates Nos. 4049-4054
Declaration of Rosanna Wesp (filed 12/15/16) Volume 18

Bates Nos. 4055-4056
Order Regarding Mona’s Claim of Exemption, Motion to Volume 18

Discharge, Memorandum of Points and Authorities, and Far
West’s Objection to Claim or Exemption Regarding October
2016 Garnishment (filed 01/09/17)

Bates Nos. 40574058

Notice of Entry of Order (filed 01/10/17) Volume 18
Bates Nos. 4059-4063
Application for Issuance of Order for Arrest of Defendant Volume 18

Michael J. Mona, Jr. (filed 01/20/17)

Bates Nos. 40644066

Exhibits to Application for Issuance of Order
for Arrest of Defendant Michael J. Mona, Jr.

Exhibit | Document Description
1 Subpoena Duces Tecum to Michael D. Sifen Volume 18
Bates Nos. 4067-4076
Michael J. Mona’s Opposition to Application for Issuance of |Volume 18

Order for Arrest of Defendant Michael J. Mona, Jr. (filed
02/06/17)

Bates Nos. 4077—-4089

Exhibits to Michael J. Mona’s Opposition to
Application for Issuance of Order for Arrest of
Defendant Michael J. Mona, Jr.

Exhibit | Document Description
1 Volume 18
Decree of Divorce (filed 07/23/15) Bates Nos. 4090—4096
Reply to Opposition to Application for Issuance of Order for |Volume 18

Arrest of Defendant Michael J. Mona, Jr. (filed 02/14/17)

Bates Nos. 40974107

Exhibits to Reply to Opposition to Application
for Issuance of Order for Arrest of Defendant
Michael J. Mona, Jr.

Exhibit | Document Description

A

Decree of Divorce (filed 07/23/15)

Volume 18
Bates Nos. 41084114




Exhibits to Reply to Opposition to Application
for Issuance of Order for Arrest of Defendant
Michael J. Mona, Jr. (cont.)

B Nevada Secretary of State Entity Details for CV Volume 18
Sciences, Inc. Bates Nos. 41154118
C Executive Employment Agreement Volume 18

Bates Nos. 41194136

Exhibits to Reply to Opposition to Application
for Issuance of Order for Arrest of Defendant
Michael J. Mona, Jr. (cont.)

D Judgment Debtor Examination of Michael Mona Volume 18
Bates Nos. 41374148

E Residential Lease/Rental Agreement Volume 18
Bates Nos. 41494152

F Management Agreement Volume 18
Bates Nos. 41534157

Claim of Exemption from Execution (filed 03/24/17) Volume 18
Bates Nos. 41584164

Appendix of Exhibits Attached to Memorandum of Points ~ |Volume 18

and Authorities in Support of Claim of Exemption and
Motion to Discharge Garnishment (filed 03/24/17)

Bates Nos. 41654167

Exhibits to Appendix of Exhibits Attached to
Memorandum of Points and Authorities in
Support of Claim of Exemption and Motion to
Discharge Garnishment

Exhibit | Document Description

A Nevada Assembly Bill 247, Chapter 338, Page 699 |Volume 18
(1989) Bates Nos. 41684216

B Decree of Divorce dated July 23, 2015 Volume 18
Bates Nos. 4217-4223

C Rhonda’s Opposition to Motion to Intervene dated |Volume 18
September 28, 2015 Bates Nos. 4224-4236

D Mona’s September 29, 2015 Joinder to Rhonda’s  |Volume 18
Opposition Bates Nos. 42374240

E November 25, 2015 Order Denying Intervention Volume 18
and awarding fees and costs Bates Nos. 4241-4243

F Writ of Garnishment expiring April 29, 2016 Volume 18

Bates Nos. 4244-4245




Exhibits to Appendix of Exhibits Attached to
Memorandum of Points and Authorities in
Support of Claim of Exemption and Motion to
Discharge Garnishment (cont.)

G Writ of Garnishment served July 1, 2016 Volume 18
Bates Nos. 42464253

H July 5, 2016 correspondence from Constable with  |Volume 18
Notice and Writ of Execution Bates Nos. 42544263

I Writ of Execution and Writ of Garnishment served |Volume 18
October 31, 2016 Bates Nos. 4264-4274

J Claim of Exemption forms from Clark County and |Volume 18
the Self-Help Center Bates Nos. 42754282

K NRS 21.075 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 42834285

L NRS 20.076 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 42864287

M NRS 21.090 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 4288—4290

N NRS 21.112 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 4291-4292

@) NRS 31.200 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 4293-4294

P NRS 31.249 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 4295-4296

Q NRS 31.260 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 4297-4298

R NRS 31.270 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 42994300

S NRS 31.295 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 43014302

T NRS 31.296 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 4303-4304

U EDCR 2.20 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 4305-4306

A% Check to Mike Mona, Writ of Execution, and Writ |Volume 19

of Garnishment

Bates Nos. 43074323




Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Support of Claim
of Exemption and Motion to Discharge Garnishment (filed
03/30/17)

Volume 19
Bates Nos. 43244359

Appendix of Exhibits Attached to Memorandum of Points
and Authorities in Support of Claim of Exemption and
Motion to Discharge Garnishment (filed 03/30/17)

Volume 19
Bates Nos. 43604362

Exhibits to Appendix of Exhibits Attached to
Memorandum of Points and Authorities in
Support of Claim of Exemption and Motion to
Discharge Garnishment

Exhibit | Document Description

A Nevada Assembly Bill 247, Chapter 338, Page 699 |Volume 19
(1989) Bates Nos. 4363—4411

B Volume 19
Decree of Divorce dated July 23, 2015 Bates Nos. 44124418

C Rhonda’s Opposition to Motion to Intervene dated |Volume 19
September 28, 2015 Bates Nos. 4419-4431

D Mona’s September 29, 2015 Joinder to Rhonda’s  |Volume 19
Opposition Bates Nos. 4432—4435

E November 25, 2015 Order Denying Intervention Volume 19
and awarding fees and costs Bates Nos. 44364438

F Volume 19
Writ of Garnishment expiring April 29, 2016 Bates Nos. 44394440

G Volume 19
Writ of Garnishment served July 1, 2016 Bates Nos. 44414448

H July 5, 2016 correspondence from Constable with | Volume 19
Notice and Writ of Execution Bates Nos. 44494458

I Writ of Execution and Writ of Garnishment served |Volume 19
October 31, 2016 Bates Nos. 4459—4469

J Claim of Exemption forms from Clark County and |Volume 19
the Self-Help Center Bates Nos. 44704477

K NRS 21.075 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 4478-4480

L NRS 20.076 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 44814482

M | NRS 21.090 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 44834485

N NRS 21.112 Volume 19

Bates Nos. 44864487




Exhibits to Appendix of Exhibits Attached to
Memorandum of Points and Authorities in
Support of Claim of Exemption and Motion to
Discharge Garnishment (cont.)

O NRS 31.200 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 44884489

P NRS 31.249 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 44904491

Q NRS 31.260 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 44924493

R NRS 31.270 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 44944495

S NRS 31.295 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 44964497

T NRS 31.296 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 4498-4499

U EDCR 2.20 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 45004501

A% Check to Mike Mona, Writ of Execution, and Writ |Volume 19
of Garnishment Bates Nos. 45024518

W Check to CV Sciences, Writ of Execution, and Writ |Volume 20
of Garnishment Bates Nos. 45194535

X Affidavit of Service regarding March 15, 2017 Volume 20

service of Writ of Execution, and Writ of

Garnishment from Laughlin Township Constable’s
Office

Bates Nos. 45364537

Claim of Exemption from Execution (filed 03/30/17) Volume 20
Bates Nos. 4538-4544
Order Regarding Far West’s Application for Issuance of Volume 20

Order for Arrest of Defendant Michael J. Mona, Jr. (filed
03/31/17)

Bates Nos. 45454546

Notice of Entry of Order (filed 04/03/17) Volume 20
Bates Nos. 4547-4550
Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Support of Claim |Volume 20

of Exemption and Motion to Discharge Garnishment (filed
04/20/17)

Bates Nos. 45514585

Claim of Exemption from Execution (filed 04/20/17)

Volume 20
Bates Nos. 45864592




Appendix of Exhibits Attached to Memorandum of Points
and Authorities in Support of Claim of Exemption and
Motion to Discharge Garnishment (filed 04/20/17)

Volume 20
Bates Nos. 45934595

Exhibits to Appendix of Exhibits Attached to
Memorandum of Points and Authorities in
Support of Claim of Exemption and Motion to
Discharge Garnishment

Exhibit | Document Description

A Nevada Assembly Bill 247, Chapter 338, Page 699 |Volume 20
(1989) Bates Nos. 4596—4644

B Decree of Divorce dated July 23, 2015 Volume 20
Bates Nos. 46454651

C Rhonda’s Opposition to Motion to Intervene dated |Volume 20
September 28, 2015 Bates Nos. 46524664

D Mona’s September 29, 2015 Joinder to Rhonda’s | Volume 20
Opposition Bates Nos. 4665—4668

E November 25, 2015 Order Denying Intervention Volume 20
and awarding fees and costs Bates Nos. 4669-4671

F Writ of Garnishment expiring April 29, 2016 Volume 20
Bates Nos. 46724673

G Writ of Garnishment served July 1, 2016 Volume 20
Bates Nos. 4674—4681

H July 5, 2016 correspondence from Constable with | Volume 20
Notice and Writ of Execution Bates Nos. 46824691

I Writ of Execution and Writ of Garnishment served |Volume 20
October 31, 2016 Bates Nos. 46924702

J Claim of Exemption forms from Clark County and |Volume 20
the Self-Help Center Bates Nos. 47034710

K | NRS 21.075 Volume 20
Bates Nos. 47114713

L NRS 20.076 Volume 20
Bates Nos. 47144715

M | NRS 21.090 Volume 20
Bates Nos. 47164718

N NRS 21.112 Volume 20
Bates Nos. 4719-4720

O NRS 31.200 Volume 20
Bates Nos. 47214722

P NRS 31.249 Volume 20

Bates Nos. 47234724




Exhibits to Appendix of Exhibits Attached to
Memorandum of Points and Authorities in
Support of Claim of Exemption and Motion to
Discharge Garnishment (cont.)

Q NRS 31.260 Volume 20
Bates Nos. 47254726
R NRS 31.270 Volume 20
Bates Nos. 47274728
S NRS 31.295 Volume 20
Bates Nos. 47294730
T NRS 31.296 Volume 20
Bates Nos. 47314732
U EDCR 2.20 Volume 20
Bates Nos. 47334734
A% Check to Mike Mona, Writ of Execution, and Writ |Volume 20
of Garnishment Bates Nos. 47354751
W Check to CV Sciences, Writ of Execution, and Writ |Volume 20
of Garnishment Bates Nos. 47524768
X Affidavit of Service regarding March 15, 2017 Volume 21
service of Writ of Execution, and Writ of Bates Nos. 47694770
Garnishment from Laughlin Township Constable’s
Office
Y Affidavit of Service regarding April 3, 2017 service |Volume 21

of Writ of Execution, and Writ of Garnishment
from Laughlin Township Constable’s Office

Bates Nos. 47714788

Stipulation and Order Regarding Amended Nunc Pro Tunc
Order Regarding Plaintiff Far West Industries’ Motion to
Reduce Sanctions Order to Judgment (filed 04/24/17)

Volume 21
Bates Nos. 47894791

Notice of Entry Stipulation and Order Regarding amended
Nunc Pro Tunc Order regarding Plaintiff Far West
Industries’ Motion to Reduce Sanctions Order to Judgment
(filed 04/25/17)

Volume 21
Bates Nos. 47924797

Plaintiff Far West Industries Objection to Claim of
Exemption from Execution on an Order Shortening Time

and Motion for Attorney Fees and Costs Pursuant to NRS
18.010(2)(b) (filed 05/02/17)

Volume 21
Bates Nos. 47984817




Exhibits to Plaintiff Far West Industries
Objection to Claim of Exemption from
Execution on an Order Shortening Time and

Motion for Attorney Fees and Costs Pursuant to
NRS 18.010(2)(b)

Exhibit | Document Description
1 Findings of Fact and Conclusions of law (filed Volume 21
03/06/12 Superior Court of California Riverside)  |Bates Nos. 4818-4834
2 Order Regarding Plaintiff Far West Industries’ Volume 21
Motion for Determination of Priority of Bates Nos. 48354841
Garnishment and Defendant Michael J. Mona’s
Countermotion to Discharge Garnishment and for
Return of Proceeds (filed 06/21/16)
3 Nevada Secretary of State Entity Details for CV Volume 21
Sciences, Inc. Bates Nos. 48424845
4 Answers to Interrogatories Volume 21
Bates Nos. 4846—4850
Stipulation and Order Regarding Writ of Garnishment Volume 21

Served 04/03/17 and Claim of Exemption , and Vacating
Related Hearing without Prejudice (filed 05/15/17)

Bates Nos. 48514854

Notice of Entry of Stipulation and Order Regarding Writ of
Garnishment Served 04/03/17 and Claim of Exemption , and
Vacating Related Hearing without Prejudice (filed 05/16/17)

Volume 21
Bates Nos. 48554861

Claim of Exemption from Execution (filed 05/23/17) Volume 21
Bates Nos. 48624868
Appendix of Exhibits Attached to Memorandum of Points Volume 21

and Authorities in Support of Claim of Exemption and
Motion to Discharge Garnishment (filed 05/23/17)

Bates Nos. 48694871

Exhibits to Appendix of Exhibits Attached to
Memorandum of Points and Authorities in
Support of Claim of Exemption and Motion to
Discharge Garnishment

Exhibit

Document Description

A Nevada Assembly Bill 247, Chapter 338, Page 699 |Volume 21
(1989) Bates Nos. 4872—-4920

B Decree of Divorce dated July 23, 2015 Volume 21
Bates Nos. 4921-4927

C Rhonda’s Opposition to Motion to Intervene dated |Volume 21

September 28, 2015

Bates Nos. 4928-4940




Exhibits to Appendix of Exhibits Attached to
Memorandum of Points and Authorities in
Support of Claim of Exemption and Motion to
Discharge Garnishment (cont.)

D Mona’s September 29, 2015 Joinder to Rhonda’s  |Volume 21
Opposition Bates Nos. 4941-4944

E November 25, 2015 Order Denying Intervention Volume 21
and awarding fees and costs Bates Nos. 4945-4947

F Writ of Garnishment expiring April 29, 2016 Volume 21
Bates Nos. 49484949

G Writ of Garnishment served July 1, 2016 Volume 21
Bates Nos. 49504957

H July 5, 2016 correspondence from Constable with | Volume 21
Notice and Writ of Execution Bates Nos. 4958—4967

I Writ of Execution and Writ of Garnishment served |Volume 21
October 31, 2016 Bates Nos. 4968—4978

J Claim of Exemption forms from Clark County and |Volume 21
the Self-Help Center Bates Nos. 4979-4986

K | NRS 21.075 Volume 21
Bates Nos. 49874989

L NRS 20.076 Volume 21
Bates Nos. 4990—-4991

M | NRS 21.090 Volume 21
Bates Nos. 4992-4994

N NRS 21.112 Volume 21
Bates Nos. 4995-4996

O NRS 31.200 Volume 21
Bates Nos. 49974998

P NRS 31.249 Volume 21
Bates Nos. 4999-5000

Q NRS 31.260 Volume 21
Bates Nos. 5001-5002

R NRS 31.270 Volume 21
Bates Nos. 5003-5004

S NRS 31.295 Volume 21
Bates Nos. 5005-5006

T NRS 31.296 Volume 21

Bates Nos. 5007-5008




Exhibits to Appendix of Exhibits Attached to
Memorandum of Points and Authorities in
Support of Claim of Exemption and Motion to
Discharge Garnishment (cont.)

U EDCR 2.20 Volume 21
Bates Nos. 5009-5010
A% Check to Mike Mona, Writ of Execution, and Writ |Volume 22
of Garnishment Bates Nos. 5011-5027
W Check to CV Sciences, Writ of Execution, and Writ |Volume 22
of Garnishment Bates Nos. 5028-5044
X Affidavit of Service regarding March 15, 2017 Volume 22
service of Writ of Execution, and Writ of Bates Nos. 5045-5046
Garnishment from Laughlin Township Constable’s
Office
Y Affidavit of Service regarding April 3, 2017 service |Volume 22
of Writ of Execution, and Writ of Garnishment Bates Nos. 5047-5064
from Laughlin Township Constable’s Office
Z Writ of Execution and Writ of Garnishment served |Volume 22
May 9, 2017 Bates Nos. 50655078
Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Support of Claim |Volume 22

of Exemption and Motion to Discharge Garnishment (filed
05/23/17)

Bates Nos. 5079-5114

Plaintiff Far West Industries Objection to Claim of
Exemption from Execution on an Order Shortening Time

and Motion for Attorney Fees and Costs Pursuant to NRS
18.010(2)(b) (filed 06/05/17)

Volume 22
Bates Nos. 5115-5131

Exhibits to Plaintiff Far West Industries
Objection to Claim of Exemption from
Execution on an Order Shortening Time and

Motion for Attorney Fees and Costs Pursuant to
NRS 18.010(2)(b)

Exhibit | Document Description
1 Findings of Fact and Conclusions of law (filed Volume 22
03/06/12 in Superior Court of California Riverside) |Bates Nos. 5132-5148
2 Order Regarding Plaintiff Far West Industries’ Volume 22

Motion for Determination of Priority of
Garnishment and Defendant Michael J. Mona’s

Countermotion to Discharge Garnishment and for
Return of Proceeds (filed 06/21/16)

Bates Nos. 5149-5155




Exhibits to Plaintiff Far West Industries
Objection to Claim of Exemption from
Execution on an Order Shortening Time and
Motion for Attorney Fees and Costs Pursuant to
NRS 18.010(2)(b) (cont.)

3 Affidavit of Service by Laughlin Township Volume 22
Constable’s Office Bates Nos. 51565157

4 Affidavit of Service by Laughlin Township Volume 22
Constable’s Office Bates Nos. 5158-5159

Notice of Entry of Order Sustaining Plaintiff Far West Volume 22

Industries’ Objection to Claim of Exemption from Execution

(filed 07/19/17)

Bates Nos. 5160-5165

Ex Parte Motion for Order Allowing Judgment Debtor
Examination of Michael J. Mona, Jr., Individually, and as
Trustee of the Mona Family Trust Dated February 12, 2002
(filed 08/16/17)

Volume 22
Bates Nos. 51665179

Notice of Appeal (filed 08/18/17)

Volume 22
Bates Nos. 5180-5182

Exhibits to Notice of Appeal

Exhibit | Document Description
1 Notice of Entry of Order Sustaining Plaintiff Far Volume 22
West Industries’ Objection to Claim of Exemption |Bates Nos. 5183-5189
from Execution (filed 07/19/17)
2 Notice of Entry of Order Regarding Plaintiff Far Volume 22

West Industries’ Motion for Determination of
Priority of Garnishment and Defendant Michael J.
Mona’s Countermotion to Discharge Garnishment
and for Return of Proceeds (filed 06/21/16)

Bates Nos. 5190-5199

Order for Examination of Judgment Debtor Michael J.
Mona, Jr., Individually, and as Trustee of the Mona Family
Trust dated February 12, 2002 (filed 08/18/17)

Volume 22
Bates Nos. 5200-5211

Far West Industries’ Reply to CV Sciences Inc.’s Answers to

Writ of Garnishment Interrogatories and Ex parte Request
for Order to Show Cause Why CV Sciences Inc. Should Not
be Subjected to Garnishment Penalties (filed 11/20/17)

Volume 22
Bates Nos. 5212-5223




Exhibits to Far West Industries’ Reply to CV
Sciences Inc.’s Answers to Writ of Garnishment
Interrogatories and Ex parte Request for Order
to Show Cause Why CV Sciences Inc. Should
Not be Subjected to Garnishment Penalties

Exhibit | Document Description

1 Answers to Interrogatories to be Answered by Volume 22
Garnishee Bates Nos. 5224-5229

2 United States Securities and Exchange Volume 22
Commission, Form 10-K Bates Nos. 5230-5233

3 Judgment Debtor Examination of Michael J. Mona, |Volume 22
Jr. Bates Nos. 5234-5241

4 Excerpts of Car Lease Documents Volume 22
Bates Nos. 5242-5244

5 Excerpts of Life Insurance Premium Documents Volume 22
Bates Nos. 5245-5250

6 Excerpts of Car Insurance Documents Volume 23
Bates Nos. 5251-5254

7 Laughlin Constable Affidavit of Service Volume 23
Bates Nos. 5255-5256

8 Laughlin Constable Affidavit of Mailing Volume 23
Bates Nos. 5257-5258

9 Answers to Writ of Garnishment Interrogatories Volume 23
Bates Nos. 5259-5263

10 | Email Exchange between Andrea Gandara an Tye |Volume 23
Hanseen June 26, 2017 through August 26, 2017 Bates Nos. 5264-5267

11 Email Exchange between Andrea Gandara an Tye |Volume 23
Hanseen, November 2017 Bates Nos. 5268-5275

Docket of Case No. A670352 Volume 23

Bates Nos. 52765284
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DOES NOT APPLY
Alternative Minimum Tax - Individuals 5

Dessrnt of e gy # Information about Forn B251 and Its separate instructions is at www.is.goviformi5231. Jussnel

voarmad Bawioos Servnm 099, P Attach Lo Form 1040 or Form JO4ONR. Seqivice Ko,

Namsfs) showy on Form 1040 o Form 104088

MONA

i
Part1.-. ARernative Minimum Taxable Incoma
1 1 firg Scheduis A Form 3040), orfer the amount fram Farm 10480, fina 41, and go to ing 2. 2therwisa, omor the ]
AT from Form 1040, line 3%, and go 10 oa 7. (1 tess than rero, enter as & negative amotnt) _ .
2 Medica and dental, B you or Your ssoust was 36.¢1 oider, srme the smaller of Scheduts A (Fam l()«") I:\n‘:
or 2.5% {025) of Form 1040, ko 38, if xero of less enter O -
Tmr frem Schadule A (Fom 1043, e & N
Entor the home morgage itarest adiustmend, § ary, lrvm h}:e ot the mukslwl n "m mm)ﬂm Im:ms nc
Miscefaneous dadustions Hom Schadute A Foom 3040, ine 27 . e s v
1f Fene 1040, S 38, is S152,525 or lzss, enter -0 Clharwise, son m.m,mm
Tax reksd from Forr, 1040, #ne 0ot iine 2t .
Invhzimeant intercst xprnss Idititenco between mgz.iar tar ana AMT
Cepation (ddforence betwuen regular Iax and AMTY . [ .
Net opacating loss deducteon frem Fomm 1040, e 21 €nter a3 posdme ament g
Aharnativa 1ax net oparating ‘oss goducton .
12 Intevest from apacifiod pivisto activity bends anump! from thc rt;aular ax —s
13 Quelified simall business stock (7% of gain exchaded Lndo” sochion 1207
14, Exorcisn of inggnive sicck options (2xcess of AMT income over regular tax hco-m;
15 Estaras und trusts (amount fom Schedade K1 {Form *041), bex 12, code A}
16 Ewcting larga partnerstaps ot from Schedos K1 (Fom 1085 8}, box €}
17 Dispoeition of Teoperty (Uilference Detvaen AJAT anc regutar tax gai or lous)
18 Deprociution on assets placed in servics Mer 1988 [diferonoa betwann regita? :az nnd AMT)
18 Passive activities {diffetanca betwean AMT and reguiar 12X IN0OMa &7 1065) .
20 Loss limijations (citioronce betweert AMT and regriar 1ax incoms of se)
21 Crculation comsls {Uvrence betweon regulr tax and AT,
22 Longterm coniracia iditference boiwaeon AMT and regfar fax ncom.
23 Mining osts (ditterence botwoen rigusar tax and AMT;
24 Research and cparmental coxts {difference between reguiar 3 anxd N-.")

m;mwmafa‘un -
H

o

i

509\100.Am

-
py

25 Inconyz oM Certain instalimene sales before January 1. 1987 .o 25
26 Intangitie dilling costs preforance | VSRR TPSSORE . B SO,
mawm-mmmwmmm P
28 Alternative minimum @rsble income, Comding wnes 1 through 27 (F marmmd lﬁﬂg snpavamty and G Zszs
rore than $242,450, see & i e e | 2B 12,284,
[Parin_| Aiternative Minimum ax (AMIT)
29 Ewrgmm,(ﬂgﬂlwamﬂwzdalmmdc‘zcm,:w Histraions ) v
IF your filing stadus 15... AND line 28 is not Dver ... THEN sntec on line 29...
Seglesrhead ot housaleld L SHIZB00 $50,800 ;
WNW)WMWWMM . IEBB00 ..., B200 } B S
Mated filing soparatcly 78.250 41,080 | 29 | 2] ag.

e 28 is over the kmount showr aboveftxyrmr!ihg s:aumim nstmm
FD Sarract m 29 Do Ine 78 BTN PE0 3010 S 1) P20 0 e, wote O owo 30 on N 29,35, ma M A nedd
34 * ! yog are Bling Form 2555 or 2555-EX, see bintructions for the amounl 1o enter,
* { you reported capitsl Gain distributions directly on Form 1040, lire 13, you roponted quaites drddencds ‘l

-

on Form 1049, line 9; or you "3 a gair.on both kres 15 and 15 of Szhedule D (Form 1040) {as refigured
fox the AMT, ¥ necessary). compiote Pan lthon page 2 and enter the amourt firm lne 64 here.

* All othera: Hf ine 30 & $182.600 or Jass {$91,250 or leas f mumiodd fing separataty), awltiply ine: 30 by
76% {26]. Otherwise, madtiply ins 2C by 23% (2% and subtrac: $3,650 {$1.825 t mamed fiing
separaicly) from the es.t. y

32 Aonrmtive mirdmaam tas forelgr tax crodt tees instroctions)

33 Tergative mininum tax, Subtract ire 32 om ine 31 o

24 Acd Forrm - Mﬂ“(ﬂmryfulmk:mfsra mdFaleQ iide s..mm any
forels tax crede from Foom 1040, Jine 48, # you used St J 1o hours your tax on Form 1540, smu wligyre

that fax without Jsing Schadule J befors compleling this kne (880 FSIRCHONE .. . e L2
3 ko 33, i o antar 3 Erder on A5 N 55 0.
UM LA For Pepenwork Reduction Act Motice, see your fax return Instructions. Form 6251 {2014)
23
SV MONAM PR 11ONA, MICHAEL MONAM_ _ 1
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RS MONAM

Fom £281 2014)
Pairtlil | Tax Computation Using Maximum Capital Gains Rates

MICHAEL J, MONA JR & RHONDA H. Mona _ YNENSUENER. ~xc 2

Complete Part 1 oty f you are reqired to do so by kny 31 o by the Fateign Eamad Incarme Tax Wersshin i the isstiuetions.
e Pt 1] or i ¢ Ened Incone e Worsitool & the lestiuet S

38 Enter the amound from Form 6251, ina 30. If you are filing Form 2555 or 255842, enter mw amount o
[ 3 of the wodkshert in tha instacticns for line 31
37 Enter the amount from koo 6 of th Qualliod Dmﬂends:md Caas’ld S T..n wurksheﬂ n Lm !mu.rm:ns
for Form 1340, ine 44, or the smoum from Sam 13 of the Schedule 1 Tax Yiorksheet 0 the maructons o
_ Schedue D {Fonm 1040, whichover appins (as reagured for I AT, § ooyl {soe instroctions). it
you are fing Form 25855 or Z565.E7, s stisctions for the amount 50 antot S
a Er the armount from Schedue D Torm 10404, fns 19 (6 refigured for the AT, i nemsssly; (m
estuctions), K you adt filg Fonm 2656 or 2865.C2, sew insiructions for the amount 10 ater
39 1 you did not comgiclo a Sohacuie 1 Tax Workshest for tie repukar tax or B AMT, gofer the st
o ine 37, Crhonvize, add lines 37 and 28, and enter The senalter o= that result of tha Enowd fiom fire
10 of the Schadule U Tax Warhsheet (s refigured for the AMT I ngoussand.  vou e ting Form 2555 o6
ZHSHEZ, se0 IMUCEONS lor the AMDUMIO BMEY L e e e e
40 Eptor the sraker of 0z 36 o bes 19
42 #ine 41 B S182.500 o lgss (891,250 o Weos i mnnod NG sepiuately), uRiply lnw 4% by 2606 [26], Othersdsn,
vrdliply lne 471 by 28% {281 and subinact 34,650 (31,826 i maiey fitng sepatately) ot thoassult |
43 [ter
* $73.800 f nowrviadd Tiing jomily o g talifying widowded, }

N

® 25 KR singie or marmod (g sepsraickf, o

# 542,400 d hiead of housetckd. )
44 Entyr tho soacunt from @ 7 of the Qualied Dradends wrd Sapital Gala Tax Worksral in U malructons

ok Forr $T40, i 44, o thy gmowt lrom e 14 of the Sclesdule ) “ax Yenrksheet g tha swstroctions (or

Sotedie C Form 10400, whichever appias {as figured 1or the gt 1ax) 1 yoe oxd aot suaysele i

wiorkshoet for (he ragudar Y2 artor (ho smourt from Forme 1046, Sne 420 d Zocn of iesy, ey 48, i you

are B FOrm 2565 51 2905 EZ, 202 Feirucins 102 Ihe aoouent o sotet e e e .
45 Suhlract ine A4 Irem 8 43, H 2o ONISS, 8N 4o L L e e s e
48 Enter the smaller of e 35 or Sre 37
Erster the smaiier of ima 45 or fine 45, ﬂwmlijﬂllﬁ!milm b sb e s et
48 SUBKACLINO A7 ROMBMIAR e e s e e e en s e
48 Enfer;

* SA0E.TEL ¥ single - N

& ey

R v |
60 Estar tha smount frombreds | et R
51 Entar B swtaones from ke 7 ﬂ'heQmHu, Dmkaadsamw.ﬁ .ianTax'ﬂmlc:}mt nlmhsum«:n:
tex Form 1040, Sa 44, or the amourt from W 19 of thir Schedie D Tax Workshoet, whnchever apphes
(338 Digguroed 1ot th sogula kg, It you cid nod commpiete eilher warkshoot ‘or tha ragular tax, enter the
amo fromm Form 1040, B 33; I 2000 on W55, oo 43 ¥ you, are kg Fonn 2555 or Foen 255517,
see Eiucbons tor the wecord lo enter |
Add bea ECiad ke 5° R
Subtract o 52 from e 49, 1 zev0 of less, omer O
Entac be sralier of Gne 48 oc i 53 . .
Mutipy s SA by 16%-(98) RS, . B . >
Addlines 47 and 54
H Gines 56 and 36 are the sane, sklplmes 57 thtouw 61 mgolo line 82. Otherwisa, gomﬁne 57.
Sutitract #ng 56 from fio: 46
Muttinly ing 57 ty 20% [0}
if fine 38 1& reroor blmr.kip hnessmhmm;1 etmdgetouneaé Otherwisa, go 10 lino 58.
Addines &1, s, and 87 e e e o et e e e
Subirct e 53 rom e 36
Multipdy fno B6C by 257 (.25)
Ado énes 42 E5 58 end 61
63 Hine 36 is 8182,500 o ks 861 )wwm;inwﬁ-df:ﬁ'\,m-awy) mﬂﬂ!ﬂmﬁwm Jﬁ)

Crtherwise. maatiply 16 35 by 299 (28] andt subrract 3,550 ($1.525 # marind fifing serartely) from the <2508
84 Ertariha amaller of Wna 62 or line 63 hae and on kne 21, I you arg Ting Form 2555 or 2588 £Z, 6o nat enler

-
~

FRELEBR

8‘.",

561'88

i

n

{
!

2lR Rl

&
~

&

R

;ng‘ amoum o0 ng 33 Irstead erdar il on line 4 of the worksnest in the inytractons for 3ne 31
-
24
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o 3909

Deparione? o 15e “toawry
Intorrof Rewecas Sarvicn

Additional Medicare Tax

1t a0y e does not dpply to you, leave. it blank. See sepaate instructions.

Name{s) shawn on retum
MICHAEL J. MONA JR & RHONDA H. MONA P

/PatL._Additional Medicare Tax on Medicare ages

> Attach to Farm 1040, 1030NR, 1040-PR, or 1040-SS.

- information about Form 8950 and i imstruclions s 2| www.rt.gov/omayse.

]Vow socioh s-wﬁinumbor

TIAR Ny, 15430004

| 2014

Afigwneak
Sequmoe Mo 71

1

L I TR A L

8
I

Part

8

0

W0
11
12
3

14

ki
L

Medicare wagos anc (03 rom Form W, box £, it you bave
mexs than one Forn W2, poter tha toisl of $he amounts

J

o boxs
Unreportea tps froin "um f-‘f3? u % 6

219,521,

wages fton Fam @913, ine G |

> Ra iN I

A3C tines Tlwough3

219,521, -

Einter the follkowing amesit ior you lﬁrsg umus

Marrlod ey winlly e s SCHAFOOT
tamied tong sopsately . $125000
Singe, Head ol housanoid, o (x;auw1m1aw(er) 3200000 . . .. ...

Sublract tno S from i 4.1 zero or ks, eniter 43+

Ackditional Medicars Tax , i
_Additional Madicare Tax on Seif-Employmcnt lm;ume

Wmimn ©Come fom Scheaduss SE (Fonn 10408,
Soction A, kne 4, or Saction &, tne 5. f you had a oss, erter

0 {Form 1040 FR and Form 1040 55 “ders. soeinstacyons, ... | 4@
Lrwet the Kelowang mrmount [ your By 510108

Moo Feog ottty 2060000
Matrid fEng sopartely | L SI25.000
Singhe, Huad of ousehine, crf)umhfgnqwdw/ed 3230.008

:5§0

Endzrthe amount frombned |
Sustract Ene 10 from S0e 5. Hzm:n:rm minro

Subtroct ke * 1 roming B It amo or kesy, enter 4

Anditlonal Mockcare Tax an sat-employment incoma. mmwrzmo%(m Enln’ R

here and .

Rziroad ruti : {(RRTA} corry fon and bps from
Foemis] W-2, box 14 (seeinminuctions) L L . 14

"PRtlll. Additional Medicare Tax on Railrosd Retirement Tax Act mnvf) Comp

Marded fifngjointty .. . 250000
Married ‘ling scparately 125,000
Senuhbmadotmwud ofmaﬁl)f:nuummmmm,, s L8
Buctrard ing 13 om boe 14, il 2000 o lees, eniee O

Adcitiorm Medicate Tax or iadoad Mkmmﬁw) owom,.rm Muunmy liner ﬁby o

0.9% (. . Erver 1ePaniv

:Partly. Total Additional Medicare Tax

18

Add fnes 7, 13, 300 17, Also inckuie Lhis amount onfam IM ting 62, Fonm I(.WONR.
1040 PE, and ~ 440 588 nsincts 3 9o is Paty .

Pat¥: _Withholding Reconcitiation

19

bt ]
21

Madicara tax whthiheld from Form W.2, box 6. f you bave more than I
o Fom W2, entar the tolal of the amounts from box G | )

Emter tho amzun froméne 1 .. .... R
Mulliply bne 20 by 1.45% {0145). Th!slsycutcgu-v
Medicars tax withbolfing on Medicare wages

22 Subtiact Ere 21 ‘mming 19, T zx0 or less, anter 0., n\uancﬂwMedweTn

23 Addigorat Medcare Tex wﬂi-obm oh raiim

24

withholding on Macicars wages

W2, box 14 {san instructions)

Total Additionsl Mecicare Tax withhalding, Add linas 22 and 23 Ao inckide this

amott with foderal Noome Lex withliding on Form 1040, khe 64 (Form 1040NA, 1040-PR,

rinent (RATA} corpansation from Fom

IZ‘I 176,

ang 1040-5S filars, po instruchions) .
LHA FdPnpumiMmmAclNotbe.mmmmtumWim

12-43-2

SRR )2 O A 3

—uom , MICHAEL

Form 8038 (2014)
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MICHAEL J. MONMA JR & RHONDA H. MONA

TABLE 1 (Keep 101 yout 16004 G5, )

[Part '] Qwaiified Loan Linst

Enter (e average balanee of o your pranitfathered dest See boe Vinstmefions |

1

2 £k the averape bx'ancs of 2k yuor horre acquisition 62bL Ses ke 2 inskipctons 2z 640,
3 Entér $1,000,000 (5500,000 X married fing soparately} | . 3 {1,000,000.
4 Enter the Larges of tw anouni of ling 157 the amaunt on lne 41,000,000,
§ Addthe amaunts on lines 1ard 2. Cnfar the total tere s 131,178,640,
4 Eulwhnmtlklolv'cwwnmmh-Ihezmnuﬂlun.lr:: . . b8 1,000,000,
7 Enter $300,000 {$50909 fnmmmmaram)umuimcamm mlmimsmmmuh.mlwmwu e 11 100,000,
8 _ontne amoyess on Hoes Gand 7. 1021 Henit e it 8 1,100,000,
Part Dedustibie Home Morigige Interest o R

9 o the toral of Bie average bilances of all norigages of 411 Guakiied homes. Ses e 9 sretcns
« Hng § is wess ian boe 5, yo on o e 10,
« 1¥hne §i5 equat 1o of miare e Eine 9, siop Meee, A of your inlgrest o ak Ihe MOAgag eded oo loe 3 v dud
at heme nirigage inferes! oa Schaduia & (Form 1040).

10 Eaier the total armoid of latecast et yau pau, Sae e I dSTACTIONS PR

11 Davige the ausoun! G ing B by the ampunt on ine S, Enter 112 1esullas 3 decm-l amuur (Ic;nmjed lnmm ;ﬁa.es, -

12 Mubiply tie smount vit a9 10 by the Jecinal atnvont on S 31, Enter the sl This © your deduciible bome
morgage Inferest. Enter thas smaant on Sehedule A {F'rm 1040)

13 Subbact he-3mount on line 12 rom e armount o v 10, Futer the resu. Tlm YL hom mwlnun l-tmsl

81,178,640,

| 54,532.
1" X .933

i ...50.878.

Seeine 13 instructions e e g g it ) 3,654,
e il
[s i
26.1
S 1052 VSRR MONA, MICHAEL MONAM__1
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MICHAEBL J. MONA JR &

RHONDA H. MONA

STATEMENT 1

PORM 1040 WAGES RECEIVED AND TAXES WITHHELD
FEDERAL STATE CITY

T AMOUNT TAX TAX SDI FICA MEDICARE

S EMPLOYER'S NAME PAID WITHHELD WITHHELD TAX W/H TAX TAX

T CARNAVEST CORP 219,521, 55,365. 7,254. 3,359.

TOTALS 219,521. 55,365. 7,254. 3,359,

FORM 1040 QUALIFIED DIVIDENDS STATEMENT 2
ORDINARY QUALIFIED
DIVIDENDS DIVIDENDS

NAME OF PAYER

EMPLOYERS HOLDINGS INC

TOTAL INCLUDED IN FORM

1040, LINE 9B

3,027. 3,027,
3,029.

STATEMENT 3

FORM 1040 FEDERAL INCOME TAX WITHHELD
T
S DESCRIPTION AMQUNT
T CANNAVEST CORP 55, 365.
FORM 8959, LINE 24 176.
TOTAL TO FORM 1040, LINB 64 55,541.
AR e T

27
PPN MONA, MICHAEL

STATEMENT(S) 1, 2, 3
MONAM___1

0451
MONA 2ad JDE - 00419
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MICHAEL J. MONA JR & RHONDA H. MONA

SCHRDULE A HOME MORTGAGE INTEREST PAID TO INDIVIDUALS/
FORM 1098 RECEIVED BY OTHER THAN TAXPAYER

STATEMENT 4

NAME AND ADDRESS OF PAYEE/FORM 1098 RECIPIENT

ID# 94-16B87665 BANK OF AMERICA, PO BOX 5170, SIMI VALLEY, CA
33062 '

TOTAL TO SCHEDULE A, LINE 11

AMOUNT

50,878.

50,878.

ey re———

SCHEDULE A POINTS NOT REPORTED ON FORM 1098 STATEMENT 5
AMORT.
DATE RE- TOTAL PERIOD AMORTIZATION
DESCRIPTION FINANCED POINTS /MOS. THIS YBAR
REFINANCING 04/03/06 15,000, 120 1,500,
TOTAL TO SCHEDULE A, LINE 12 1,500,
]
SCHEDULE A CONTRIBUTIONS OTHER THAN CASH OR CHECK STATEMENT 6
AMOUNT AMOUNT AMOUNT AMOUNT
DESCRIPTION 1008 LIMIT 50% LIMIT 30% LIMIT 20% LIMIT
SHADE TREE - CLOTHING &
MISC 475,
SUBTOTALS 475.
TOTAL TO SCHEDULE A, LINE 1.7 475.
SCHEDULE A MEDICAL AND DENTAL EXPENSES STATEMENT 7
DRSCRIPTION AMOUNT
DOCTORS, DENTISTS, ETC. 4,518.
SELF-EMPLOYED HEALTH INSURANCE 5,765.
TOTAL TO SCHEDULE A, LINE 1 10,283.
e —
28 STATEMENT(S) 4, 5, 6. 7
SRS 10N SIS MONA, MICHAEL MONAM__1
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MICHAEL J, MONA JR & RHONDA H, MONA

SCHEDULE A "~ STATE AND LOCAL GENERAL SALES TAXES STATEMENT 8
DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
STATE SALES TAX 802.
LOCAL SALES TAX 146.
SALES TAX PAID ON <ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>